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v COMPLIANCE REPORT
ON THE ANNUAL REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

To the General Assembly of Vakif Finansal Kiralama Anonim Sirketi
1. Opinion

We have audited the annual activity report of Vakif Finansal Kiralama Anonim Sirketi ("the Company") for the period of January
1, 2022 - December 31, 2022.

In our opinion, the financial information provided in the annual report of the Board of Directors and the discussions of the Board
of Directors on the Company's position are consistent, in all material respects, with the audited full set of financial statements and
the information obtained during the independent audit and presented fairly.

2. Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with standards on auditing issued by the Capital Markets Board of Turkey and Standards
on Auditing which is a component of the Turkish Auditing Standards published by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing
Standards Authority (KGK). Our responsibilities under these Standards are described in detail in the Independent Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Independent Audit of the Annual Report section of our report. We declare that we are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Independent Auditors (Code of Ethics) published by KGK and the ethical
requirements in the regulations on auditing issued by KGK. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code of Ethics and other applicable laws and regulations. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained during our
audit is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Auditor's Opinion on the Full Set of Financial Statements

We have expressed an unqualified opinion in our auditor's report dated February 10, 2023 on the Company's full set of financial
statements for the period January 1, 2022 - December 31, 2022.

4. Responsibility of the Board of Directors for the Annual Report

In accordance with Articles 514 and 516 of the Turkish Commercial Code No. 6102 ("TCC") and Capital Markets Board ("CMB")
Communiqué No. 1l-14.1 "Communiqué on the Principles of Financial Reporting in Capital Markets" ("the Communiqué"), the
Company management is responsible for the following in relation to the annual report:

a) Prepares the annual activity report within the first three months following the balance sheet date and submits it to the general
assembly.

b) The annual activity report is prepared in such a way as to reflect the flow of the Company's activities for that year and its finan-
cial status in all aspects accurately, completely, straightforwardly, truthfully and honestly. In this report, the financial situation is
evaluated according to the financial statements. The report also clearly indicates the development of
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the company and the possible risks that the company may face. The assessment of the board of directors on these issues is also
included in the report.

¢) The annual report also includes the following:

- Significant events that occurred in the Company after the end of the fiscal year,

- The Company's research and development activities,

- Financial benefits such as salaries, premiums, bonuses, allowances, travel, accommodation and representation expenses,
in-kind and cash benefits, insurances and similar assurances paid to board members and senior executives.

While preparing the annual report, the board of directors also takes into consideration the secondary legislation regulations of
the Ministry of Customs and Trade and related institutions.

5. Responsibility of the Independent Auditor for the Independent Audit of the Annual Activity Report

Our aim is to express an opinion on whether the financial information provided in the annual report and the discussions of the
Board of Directors within the framework of the provisions of the Turkish Commercial Code and the Communiqué are consistent
with the audited financial statements of the Company and the information obtained during the independent audit and whether
they reflect the truth, and to prepare a report containing our opinion.

We conducted our audit in accordance with standards on auditing issued by the Capital Markets Board of Turkey and Standards
on Auditing issued by POA. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance on whether the financial information in the annual report and the discussions of the Board of
Directors are consistent with the financial statements and the information obtained during the audit and presented fairly.

The responsible auditor who conducted and concluded this audit is Emre Celik.

Glney Bagimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Misavirlik Anonim Sirketi
A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

Emre Celik, SMMM
Responsible Auditor

February 21, 2023
Istanbul, Turkey
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We understand the future well and shape it for your investments.

With 34 years of experience, Vakif Leasing adds value to your production and turns your opportunities
into profit while offering leasing advantages in a special and innovative way.
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v CHAIRMAN OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR'S MESSAGE

“In 2022, our Company continued to contribute to the growth of our
country's economy by increasing its share in the sector. In this context,
our Company successfully completed the year 2022 and increased its
assets to TL 13,220 million and its shareholders' equity to TL 1,325
million with the strength of our employees and stakeholders. In this
period, financial leasing receivables increased to TL 10,801 million and

Dear Shareholders,

2022 was a year dominated by supply chain disruptions, the sharp rise in
energy prices caused by the Russia-Ukraine war, and concerns over
Covid-19.

After the rapid recovery in global markets following the pandemic, the
disruptions in the supply chain, the sharp rise in energy prices caused by
the Russia-Ukraine war, and the ultra-loose monetary and fiscal policies
implemented worldwide in response to the pandemic pushed inflation
to its highest levels in 40 years. In response, central banks, particularly in
the United States, began raising interest rates at a faster pace than in the
past in order to combat inflation. Towards the end of 2022, with signs
that the peak in inflation had been reached, an idea began to emerge as
to where the central banks' rate hike process would end.

Vakif Leasing

Future Towards You

net profit for the period was realized as TL 519

However, given that the highest inflation levels of the last 40 years
have been seen, it is thought that it will not be very easy for inflation
to fall to the levels targeted in previous years despite these sharp
interest rate hikes. The world economy, which ended 2021 with 6%
growth, is expected to grow by around 3% in 2022 due to monetary
tightening.

Turkish economy recorded strong growth in the first two quarters of
the year. The Turkish economy, which ended 2021 with a growth rate
of 11% thanks to the recovery in domestic demand and the contribu-
tion of a competitive exchange rate, grew by 7.5% in the first quarter
of 2022 compared to the same quarter of the previous year. While the
services sector was the growth driver in the second quarter, the
expenditure component that boosted growth was household
consumption.

Thus, Turkish economy maintained its strong outlook in the second
quarter and grew by 7.7%, close to expectations. In the third quarter
of the year, Turkish economy grew by 3.9%, below market expecta-
tions. Based on the realizations of the first three quarters, the Turkish
economy is expected to end the year with a growth rate of around 5%,
although growth will slow slightly in the last quarter according to the
preliminary and industrial production data.

In 2022, our Company continued to contribute to the growth of our
country's economy by increasing its share in the sector. In this context,
our Company, which successfully completed 2022, increased its assets
to TL 13,220 million and its shareholders' equity to TL 1,325 million
with the strength it received from our employees and stakeholders. In
this period, the Company increased its financial leasing receivables to
TL 10,801 million and realized a net profit of TL 519 million.

Continuing its growth trend in 2022, our Company increased its
corporate and human resources capacity in terms of quality and
quantity, and took steps to access long-term and low-cost financing
sources in order to channel more resources to the real sector.

On behalf of our Company, | would like to extend my gratitude to our
customers, employees and stakeholders who have contributed to the
success of our Company, which continues to increase its growth.

Kind Regards,

HAZIM AKYOL

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Our Company achieved a great acceleration in 2022 in terms of both
transaction volume and transaction amount, and as a result, Vakif Leasing's
turnover increased by 51% in 2022 compared to the previous year, rising from
USD 265,618 thousand to USD 402,095 thousand. The number of transactions,
which was 758 in 2021, increased by 22% to 928 in 2022.

In 2022, as a result of all these activities, our Company increased its total
assets by 109.9% to TL 13,220 million, its shareholders' equity by 88.6% to TL
1,325 million and its net profit for the period by 304.9% to TL 519 million. In
2022, Return on Assets (ROA) was 5.2%, Net Return on Equity (ROE) was

Dear Shareholders;

The strong recovery in global economic activity will continue throughout
2021, but recovery across countries and regions level differentiations
were observed. Access to opportunities to fight the pandemic and
approaches in fiscal and monetary policies have been effective in the
differentiation of general economic activity at the country level. On the
other hand, supply and demand imbalances, changes in household
consumption patterns, the crisis in raw materials, particularly chips, and
high increases in freight costs have accentuated the differentiation in
global economic activity.

Despite this divergence, global economic growth, which displayed a
relatively buoyant outlook in the first two quarters of 2022, has been
moving towards a negative path as of the third quarter. As the Covid-19
pandemic became more manageable, the global economy revived with
normalized conditions and an increasingly rigid inflation outlook
emerged. Government subsidies, loose monetary policies, increased
liquidity and supply problems during the pandemic led to a high level of
prices at the global level.

In early 2022, the Russian-Ukrainian war also posed a serious threat to
the recovering global economy. With the war, problems in supply chains
have deepened and global food and energy prices have reached historic
highs. The energy prices that have been driven to record highs by the war
have put all energy-deficit countries, especially European economies, in a
difficult situation with high inflation and energy constraints. Moreover,
China's position as a global manufacturing hub is likely to weaken as a
result of trade tensions.

In 2021, as a result of the measures and supports taken to mitigate the
negative effects of the Covid-19 pandemic on the economy and the rapid
achievement of high vaccination rates, the Turkish economy grew by
11.4 percent in 2021, the highest growth rate in the last fifty years. Thus,
the Turkish economy has achieved a significant success by maintaining
uninterrupted growth after the global crisis.

51.2% and NPL was 2.6%.

In the first half of 2022, economic activity remained buoyant. In
addition to rising raw material and energy costs due to the
Russia-Ukraine war, disruptions in regional supply chains had a
limited impact on the growth performance of the Turkish economy.
Thanks to rising domestic and external demand, the Turkish econo-
my recorded a strong growth rate of 7.5 percent in the first half of the
year. Indicators for the third quarter, such as industrial production,
manufacturing purchasing managers' index PMI and capacity
utilization rates, suggest that the strong growth momentum in the
economy will slow down slightly, yet the favourable outlook in the
tourism sector stands out as a factor supporting growth in the third
quarter.

In the financial leasing sector, which makes a great contribution to
our country's economy, 14,304 contracts were signed in 2022. In the
same period, a transaction volume of $4,236 million was reached.

Our Company achieved a great acceleration both in terms of transac-
tion volume and transaction amount in 2022, and as a result, Vakif
Leasing's turnover increased by 51% in 2022 compared to the
previous year, rising from 265,618 thousand USD to 402,095
thousand USD. The number of transactions, which was 758 in 2021,
increased by 22% to 928 in 2022.

In 2022, as a result of all these activities, our Company increased its
total assets by 109.9% to TL 13,220 million, its shareholders' equity
by 88.6% to TL 1,325 million, and its net profit for the period by
304.9% to TL 519 million. In 2022, Return on Assets (ROA) was
realized as 5.2%, Net Return on Equity (ROE) as 51.2% and NPL as
2.6%.

In the coming period, in line with its sustainable targets, our Compa-
ny will continue to work devotedly to increase the number of
customers who will invest in production and employment that will
create added value for our country's economy, with the corporate
strength of nearly a thousand branches of its shareholder Vakifbank
behind it.

As | present our Company's 2022 Annual Report to you, | would like
to thank all our esteemed shareholders, our largest shareholder
Vakifbank, Board of Directors, customers, business partners and all
our employees for their trust in us, extend my sincere gratitude and
respect to all of our stakeholders who have contributed to this
ever-increasing success.

Sincerely,
Mustafa ERDIN

General Manager

Vakif Leasing

Future Towards You
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MEMBERS OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AND BIOGRAPHIES

Hazim AKYOL

Member of the Board of Directors / Chairman

-4
.l
Halil CELIK

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors / Independent Member

Emine UYUMAZ

Member of the Board of Directors

1'5 L.

Eren SUZEN

Member of the Board of Directors

(26.06.2019 - ...)

Born in 1969 in Aksaray, Hazim AKYOL graduated from Hacettepe University, Faculty of
Economics and Administrative Sciences, Department of Public Administration in 1990. He
started his banking career at Vakifbank in 1993 as an Assistant Inspector, and after serving as
an Inspector, he worked as an Assistant Manager in the Commercial Credits Department and as
a Manager in Bursa Branch, Kavaklidere/Ankara Branch, Kizilay/Ankara Branch, Ankara Region
Corporate Marketing Regional Directorate and Emek/Ankara Branch. Afterwards, he served as
the Head of the Salary Payments Department of the Agency and as the Head of the Ankara
Corporate Centre Branch. He also served as

a Board Member in various subsidiaries of Vakifbank. Hazim AKYOL, who is currently serving as
Assistant General Manager at Vakifbank, has been serving as the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of our Company since 26.06.20189.

(26.06.2019 - ...)

Born on 01.08.1956 in Trabzon Akgaabat, Halil CELIK completed his primary, secondary and
high school education in Akgaabat. In 1980, he graduated from Eskisehir Academy of Economic
and Commercial Sciences, Department of Economics. In 1982, he started working as an
Assistant Inspector at Ziraat Bankasi A.S. Halil CELIK served as Inspector, Chief Inspector,
Trabzon and Erzurum Regional Manager at Ziraat Bank, Inspector at lller Bank in 2002-2003,
Assistant General Manager at Halk Bankasi A.S. in 2003-2010 and Board Member at T.C. Ziraat
Bankasi A.S. in 2010-2012. Since 26.06.2019, he has been serving as the Vice Chairman of the
Board of Directors of our Company.

(03.04.2018 - ...)

Born in 1982 in Adana, Emine UYUMAZ graduated from Middle East Technical University,
Department of Economics in 2005. She completed her master's degree in Banking and Finance
at Bilgi University. In 2006, she started working as an Assistant Inspector at T. Vakiflar Bankasi
TAO and served as Assistant Inspector and Inspector until 2012, after which she worked as
Assistant Manager and Manager in the Commercial Credits Department. Since July 2017, she
has been serving as the Head of Commercial Loans Allocation Management at Vakifbank.
Emine UYUMAZ has been serving as a Board Member of our Company since April 3, 2018.

(25.06.2020 - ...)

Born in 1983 in Ankara, Eren SUZEN completed his primary and secondary education in Ankara
and graduated from Gazi University, Faculty of Economics and Administrative Sciences, Depart-
ment of Business Administration in 2006. He started his career as an assistant inspector at
Vakifbank in February/2007, and after serving as an inspector for approximately 5 years, he
was appointed as an assistant manager at the Cayyolu Branch in 2012. After serving as
Western Black Sea Regional Credits Manager, Yenimahalle Branch Manager, Ankara 3rd
Region Credits Manager, he was appointed as the Head of Retail and SME Credits Allocation
Management in January 2020 and continues to work in this department.



Savas Atanur KAZAZ

Independent Member of the Board of Directors

Selcuk GOKBAYRAK

Independent Member of the Board of Directors

Mustafa ERDIN

Member of the Board of Directors / General Manager

(01.04.2021 - ...)

Born in 1964 in Kirklareli, Savas Atanur KAZAZ graduated from Gazi University, Faculty of
Economics and Administrative Sciences, Department of Business Administration in 1987. He
started his banking career at Vakifbank in 1990 as an Assistant Financial Analyst and worked as
a Specialist and Assistant Manager in the Credits Coordination, Credit Marketing and Credit
Monitoring Departments, and then as the Head Office Branchless Banking Directorate, Ivedik
Organized Sanayi, Pursaklar, Elvankent, Ankara Public Corporate Branch Directorates, and then
as the Head Office Retail Banking Sales Coordination Manager. In 2019, he was elected as a
member of the Audit Committee of Vakifbank Pension Fund Foundation. Savas Atanur KAZAZ,
who still holds this position, has been serving as an Independent Member of the Board of
Directors of our Company since April 1, 2021.

(31.03.2022 - ...)

Born in 1978 in Artvin, Selguk GOKBAYRAK graduated from Anadolu University, Faculty of
Economics and Administrative Sciences, Department of Business Administration in 2002. After
starting his career as a banker candidate in 1999, he worked as an Audit Assistant at Pricewa-
terhouseCoopers between 2000-2002 and as a Finance Manager at Evtekssan.Dis.Tic. A.S.
between 2002-2005, Assistant General Manager at Tita Tekstil A.S. between 2005-2007,
General Manager at FATSU FMI Grup A.S. between 2007-2012, Founding Partner and Manager
of HAM&HAM Gida Insaat Turizm A.S. between 2012-2020. Since 2020, he has served as CFO
at AVS Global Ship Supply Inc. and General Manager at Ekol Denizcilik A.S. continues. Selcuk
GOKBAYRAK, who also holds a Certified Public Accountant and NBA Certificate, has been
serving as an Independent Member of the Board of Directors of our Company since
31/03/2022.

(05.05.2021 - ...)

Born in 1969 in Trabzon, Mustafa ERDIN graduated from Ankara University, Faculty of Political
Sciences, Department of Business Administration in 1990. 2003 Graduated from Boston
University / Metropolitan College SA. with a master's degree in financial management. He
started his professional career in 1992 as an assistant account specialist at the Ministry of
Finance, Board of Account Specialists. In 1995, Mustafa ERDIN became an account specialist
and in 2002 he became a chief account specialist. Between 2004 and 2009, he worked as group
head and department head at the Revenue Administration. Between 2009 and 2020, he served
as financial affairs coordinator and board member responsible for financial affairs in a
construction group with international operations based in Turkey. Mustafa ERDIN also holds a
Certified Public Accountant and Independent Auditor Certificate. He has been serving as a
member of the Board of Directors and General Manager of our Company since 05/05/2021.

Vakif Leasing
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Mehmet ilkay COSKUN Ali KOG Mustafa ERDIN Ersin 5Z0GUZ Yilmaz Arslan AYDIN

Group Manager Assistant General Manager General Manager Assistant General Manager Assistant General Manager
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v

Ersin 5Z0GUz

Assistant of General Manager

/4

Deger CONGER

Marketing Manager

/4

Levent DEMIRCi

Branch Manager - Bursa

Melda AKGUN

Operations and Insurance Manager

Tezcan KUTLU

Legal Counsellor

/4

Mustafa SARITAS

Data Processing Manager

v

Mustafa ERDIN

General Manager

/4

Yilmaz Arslan AYDIN Ali KOC

Assistant of General Manager Assistant of General Manager

/74 /4
Gonca YADIGAR

Marketing Manager

Hasan Hakan Giil
Branch Manager - Ankara

v

Bora KIRGIZ

Branch Manager - izmir

Murat KURTTAS

Branch Manager - Antalya

/4
Ash KEKEC

Financial Affairs and
Investor Relations Manager

Tolga AYAZ

Operations and Insurance Manager

/4 /4

Bayram KUYTAN

Risk Monitoring Manager

Mahmut Tolga SOZER

Legal Counsellor

v

v

ilyas YILMAZ

Internal Control Manager /

Bugra ULUSOY

Administrative Affairs Manager

Acting Risk Management Manager

/74 Vakif Leasing
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ehmet ilkay COSKUN

Group Manager

v

Ferruh ATALAY

Branch Manager - Adana

v
Sedat TASKIN

Loans Manager

v
Ebru KURULTAY

Human Resources Manager

174

Atakan ARMUTCU

Asset Management Manager
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v GENERAL INFORMATION
ABOUT THE COMPANY

@ Date of Commencement of Operations ~ 15/09/1988

® Main Field of Activity Financial Leasing

® Company Headquarter istanbul

® Paid-up Capital 600.000 thousand TL

® Number of Personnel 76

® Chairman of the Board of Directors Hazim AKYOL

® General Manager Mustafa ERDIN

® Independent Audit Organization Guney Bagimsiz Denetim and SMMM A.S
® Address - Head Office Bilyiikdere Cad. Matbuat Sok Gazeteciler Sitesi No: 13 Esentepe-Sisli / istanbul
® Phone 90 (212) 337 67 67 — (Operator)

® Trade Registry Number 248616

® Mersis Number 0922003369500010

® Fax 90(212) 3376799

® \Web-site www.vakifleasing.com.tr

SUBSIDIARIES AND AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

® \akif Faktoring A.S.

@ Vakif Pazarlama Sanayi ve Tic. A.S

® \akif Enerji ve Madencilik A.S.

@ Dogu Yatinm Holding A.S.

® \akif Yatinm Menkul Degerler A.S.

@ Tasfiye Halinde World Vakif UBB. Ltd.

PARTNERSHIP STRUCTURE
% Thousands TL
e T.Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.O. % 62,05 |372.274
0)
® Public Offering % 37,95 |227.726 A)62105
® Total % 100 600.000

-

%37,95

[ Vakif Leasing
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v CORPORATE IDENTITY /
History and Milestones

On September 15, 1988, Vakif Leasing was appointed to
Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S. as a subsidiary of Vakif-
bank. In 1991, it became the first leasing company listed
on the Istanbul Stock Exchange and opened to the
public.

34 years full of success filled the Vakif Leasing, contrib-
uting to increased development and employment in our
country continues to be one of Turkey's surplus value.
Vakif Leasing, which provides investors with significant
advantages in leasing with the experience of being able
to make the right moves at the right time with careful
work, has adopted the right principles from yesterday
to today; decisively, faithfully and progressively.

Aiming to provide financial intermediation to SMEs and
investors in the commercial segment, which constitute
a significant portion of its customer portfolio, Vakif
Leasing continues on its way by increasing its market
share in the sector.

The most important indicator of Vakif Leasing's innova-
tive approach is; is the first company to provide leasing
services in sectors such as aircraft and aviation, wind
power.

Vakif Leasing has branches in Ankara, Adana, Izmit,
Bursa, Antalya and continues its comprehensive
operations with its extensive customer portfolio and
service network throughout the country, backed by the
corporate strength of Vakifbank's nearly one thousand
branches.

J%.

- Vakif Leasing reached
an asset size of

TL 13,219,851 thousand,
net profit for the
period of
TL518,566
thousand and
shareholders'
equity of

TL 1,324,939
thousand in 2022.

Vakif Leasing reached
a turnover of
USD 289,848 in 2014.

Vakif Leasing became
the first leasing
company to

go public.

Vakif Leasing
was established.

[’ Vakif Leasing
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To be the first choice of investors in the leasing sector, to
be a Leading Company that its employees will be proud
of, by offering its customers the most appropriate
finance- man opportunities in their investments with
the highest level of customer satisfaction and service
quality.

/4

To Create Continuous Value for our customers, employ-
ees and shareholders with a success-based, contempo-
rary and customer-oriented approach.

/4

Quality service understanding based on knowledge and
creativity.

Fast and effective decision making.

High sense of responsibility with a belief in continuous
development.

Open communication based on mutual trust.
Employees who are dedicated to success and have team
spirit.

Commitment to ethical and professional rules.

/4

Full compliance with the regulations issued by law.
Honesty in relations with customers, sellers and
creditors.

Transparency and reliability.

Carrying out activities by taking into account the
[glasons for economic development as well as profitabil-
ity.

Respecting information and confidentiality and keeping
secrets.

Not creating unfair competition by considering the
common interest of the sector.

Vakif Leasing

Future Towards You
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I/ VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA AS.
DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S. ("Vakif Leasing" or the "Company") is committed to the corporate governance principles set out in the Financial
Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies Law, capital markets legislation, Turkish Commercial Code and related regulations and pays
utmost attention to the realisation of these principles. The Company has adopted the concepts of equality, transparency, accountability and
responsibility of the Corporate Governance Principles ("Principles") published by the Capital Markets Board ("CMB").

The Company has adopted the following Corporate Governance Principles from the Corporate Governance Principles included in the annex
of the Corporate Governance Communiqué numbered 1I-17.1, which entered into force after being published in the Official Gazette dated
03 January 2014 and numbered 28871;

a-) The Company is in compliance with the principles that are mandatory for companies to comply with. These principles are (1.3.1.),
(1.35.),(1.36.),(1.39.),(4.2.6.), (43.1.), (43.2.),(433.),(4.3.3),(434),(435.),(436.),(4.3.7),(43.8),(4.5.1), (45.2.), (453.), (4.5.4),
(4.5.9.),(4.5.10.),(4.5.11.), (4.5.12.), (4.5.13.), (4.6.2.) and (4.6.3.).

The duties, authorities and responsibilities of the "Investor Relations Department", which carries out its activities as the Financial Affairs
and Investor Relations Department, have been revised in accordance with the framework specified in Article 11 of the Corporate Govern-
ance Communiqué, and thus full compliance with the relevant legislation has been achieved.

b-) Regarding non-mandatory principles;

There are female members in the Company's Board of Directors. No target ratio and target time has been set for the ratio of female mem-

bers in the Board of Directors. In this context, there is partial compliance with the advisory principle no. 4.3.9. 4.5. Regarding the Sustainabili-
ty Policy, compliance studies have been initiated.

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES:

In accordance with the decision of the Capital Markets Board dated 10.01.2019 and numbered 2/49, Compliance Reporting No. Il-17.1 will
be made through the PDP platform using the Corporate Compliance Report (URF) and Corporate Governance Information Form (KYBF)
templates.

Related Reports can be accessed at www.kap.org.tr/tr/sirket-bilgileri/ozet/1115-vakif-finansal-kiralama-a-s

[74 Vakif Leasing
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
SHAREHOLDERS

2.1 Investor Relations Department

The Investor Relations Department operates under the Financial
Affairs and Investor Relations Department, reporting to Group
Manager Mehmet ilkay COSKUN in relation to the duties of the
Investor Relations Department.

The Financial Affairs and Investor Relations Department, which
manages relations with institutional investors, rating agencies
and shareholders, makes quarterly presentations to the Board of
Directors on all activities carried out, especially the presentation
of comparative financial analyses with competitor companies.
The licence of the department manager is as shown below:

“Gonca YADIGAR Director Capital Market Activities Advanced

Level Licence

| Mehmet ilkay COSKUN | Group Director | Corporate Governance Assessment Licence |

*Serves as a member of the Corporate Governance Committee in accordance with Article
11 and paragraph 2 of the Corporate Governance Communiqué.

The personnel working under the Financial Affairs and Investor
Relations Department are as follows:

Phone Number E-Mail Address
Mehmet ilkay ) T
COSKUN Group Director 0212 337 67 67 1.COSKUN@vakifleasing.com.tr
Asli KEKEG Director 0212 337 67 67 A.KEKEC@vakifleasing.com.tr
Neslihan YILDIZLI 0212 337 67 67 N.YILDIZLI@vakifleasing.com.tr
Manager
Ece AKGUN Expert 0212 337 67 67 E.AKGUN@Uvakifleasing.com.tr

Barig ATIK Assistant Expert | 0212 337 67 67 B.ATIK@vakifleasing.com.r

The main duties and responsibilities of the Investor Relations
Department are as follows

- To ensure that shareholder records are kept in a healthy,
secure and up-to-date manner,

-To respond to shareholders' written requests for information
about the company, except for confidential and commercial
information about the company that has not been disclosed to
the public,

- To ensure that the general assembly meeting is held in
accordance with the applicable legislation, articles of associa-
tion and other internal regulations,

- To prepare the documents that can be utilised by the share-
holders at the general assembly meeting,

- To ensure that the voting results are recorded and reports on
the results are sent to the shareholders,

- To observe and monitor all kinds of issues related to public
disclosure, including the legislation and the company's disclo-
sure policy.

Throughout the year 2022 by the Investor Relations Depart-
ment;

The Ordinary General Assembly Meeting held in 2022 has
been organized to fulfill the scope and the form required by
the related Law, Capital Markets Law, Corporate Governance
Communiqué, Company Articles of Association and other
legislation.

2.2 Exercise of Shareholders' Right to Obtain Information

Questions addressed to the Investor Relations Unit, except for
confidential information and trade secrets, are answered either
by telephone or in writing by contacting the most authorised
person of the relevant subject.

In 2022, there were no written requests for information received
by the Investor Relations Unit; however, the necessary answers
were given to telephone inquiries. Information and develop-
ments concerning the Company, such as share transactions,
capital increases, dividend payments, general assembly meet-
ings, financial reports, material event disclosures, etc., which are
of interest to shareholders, are regularly communicated to the
relevant parties via the Company's website, mail and telephone.
In addition, written responses are provided to the requests of
domestic shareholders for information on the status of their
shares, conversion of their existing shares, and distribution of
shares after death.

On the other hand, the request for the appointment of a special
auditor is not regulated as an individual right in the Articles of
Association and no request for the appointment of a special
auditor was received during the reporting period.

2.3 General Assembly Meetings
Ordinary General Assembly;

The General Assembly of our company for the 2021 activity
period was held on 31.03.2022 at the company headquarters
with the participation of the representatives of the shareholders,
the Ministry Representative of the Ministry of Trade of the
Republic of Turkey, and 75.09% shareholders.

At the General Assembly Meeting of our Company held on
31.03.2022, "Article 6 titled Capital" of the Articles of Association
of the Company was amended and the registered capital ceiling
was increased from TL 1,000,000,000 to TL 2,000,000,000,000.

The Company held its Ordinary General Assembly Meeting in
2022 in accordance with the provisions of the "Regulation on
General Assembly Meetings of Joint Stock Companies to be held
electronically" and the "Communiqué on the General Assembly
System to be applied in General Assemblies of Joint Stock Compa-
nies". Thus, shareholders had the opportunity to attend the
General Assembly meeting electronically, make suggestions,
express their opinions and vote.
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It is announced to the public and shareholders via Public Disclo-
sure Platform, Turkish Trade Registry Gazette, e-Company
Information Portal and e-General Assembly Electronic General
Assembly System, and also published on the Company's website.

For the e-General Assembly service, which enables attending,
making proposals, expressing opinions and voting in the Compa-
ny's General Assembly Meeting electronically, a General Assem-
bly call is made at least 21 days prior to the General Assembly
Meeting in the CRA system, excluding the meeting and call days.
In addition, these documents are also sent by mail to sharehold-
ers whose address information is up-to-date in the Company
records.

The Company's Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss statements for
the 2021 accounting period, the Board of Directors' Annual
Report for 2021, the Financial Statements and Footnotes for
2021, including the Independent External Audit Firm Report,
prepared for the General Assembly, are made available for the
information and review of the Company's shareholders prior to
the General Assembly at the Company Headquarters as well as
the CRA system. In addition, upon request of the shareholders,
the invitation to the General Assembly, agenda and power of
attorney samples can be obtained. Shareholders who have the
right to attend the General Assembly and fulfil the necessary
procedures to attend the General Assembly attended the
Ordinary General Assembly Meeting in 2022.

In the announcements and invitation letters published prior to
the General Assembly, shareholders are informed about:

-The date, time and place of the meeting,

-The agenda of the meeting,

-The body by which the invitation was made (the Company's
Board of Directors),

-The addresses where the Annual Report and balance sheet,
profit and loss statements will be submitted for the review of the
shareholders (Head Office),

-Samples of proxy forms for shareholders who cannot attend the
meeting in person.

The Annual Report includes information such as Company activi-
ties, information on senior management, Company balance
sheets, balance sheet footnotes, Independent Audit Report,
Corporate Governance Principles Compliance Report, etc. The
Annual Report is provided to shareholders upon request by the
Investor Relations Department before and after the General
Assembly.

In both Ordinary General Assemblies of the Company, all share-
holders, regardless of their shareholding rates, have the right to
speak, express their opinions and ask questions on agenda items.
At the Ordinary General Assembly meeting held on 31 March
2022, the questions asked by the shareholders who attended
both physically and electronically,

the wishes and opinions expressed, and the answers given by the
Chairman of the Meeting and the Council Board regarding the
aforementioned issues are included in the General Assembly
minutes in detail. The minutes and annexes of the General
Assembly meetings are announced to the public and sharehold-
ers through the Public Disclosure Platform, the Turkish Trade
Registry Gazette, the e-Company Information Portal and the
e-General Assembly Electronic General Assembly System, and
are also published on the Company's website.

In 2022, there were no transactions where the decision was left
to the General Assembly due to the lack of affirmative votes by
the majority of the Independent Board Members.

Shareholders who control the management, members of the
board of directors, executives with administrative responsibilities
and their spouses and relatives by blood or marriage up to
second degree do not have any significant transactions with the
Company or its subsidiaries that may cause conflict of interest. In
addition, it has been understood that the aforementioned
persons do not carry out any commercial business transactions
within the scope of the Company's or its subsidiaries' field of
activity on their own account or on behalf of others, or that they
do not have any responsibility as unlimited partners in another
partnership engaged in the same type of commercial business.

Pursuant to the last item of the agenda, shareholders and other
invitees exercised their right to ask questions, and after receiving
adequate answers from the company executives, they expressed
their wishes for a favourable outcome.

2.4 Voting Rights and Minority Rights

The voting rights of shareholders and provisions regarding the
exercise of these rights are set forth in the Company's Articles of
Association.

At the General Assembly meetings, each shareholder holding ten
shares or representing this amount of shares has one vote.
Holders of more than ten shares have the right to vote without
limitation in @ number to be determined according to the
above-mentioned ratio.

There is no cross-shareholding relationship in the Company
capital. The exercise of minority rights is subject to the Turkish
Commercial Code, Capital Markets Law, relevant legislation and
the communiqués and resolutions of the CMB.

Our Company does not use cumulative voting method.

2.5 Dividend Rights

There are no privileges in terms of participation in the Company's
profits.

The "Dividend Distribution Policy" of our Company, which deter-
mines the dividend distribution decisions by taking into consider-
ation the provisions of the Turkish Commercial Code, Capital
Markets Legislation, Capital Markets Board regulations, tax laws
and other legal legislation together with the Company's articles of
association, has been determined according to the following
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According to this;

- The Board of Directors decides on profit distribution;
The CMB legislation provides recommendations to the General
Assembly taking into consideration the market conditions and
the Company's objectives. In the event that there is no negativity
in the economic conditions of the world and country as a
dividend distribution policy, and if the Company's financial
structure and capital adequacy ratios are at the foreseen levels, it
is foreseen that at least 10% of the distributable profit shall be
distributed as cash and / or registered shares.

- The decision of distribution shall come into force if it is
approved by the General Assembly and the decisions taken shall
be announced to the public on the same day through the Public
Disclosure Platform.

- Cash dividend payments are made no later than the
end of the second month following the date of the General
Assembly meeting at which the dividend distribution decision is
taken. Dividend distribution in the form of bonus shares is
realized following the receipt of legal permissions.

- There are no privileged shares in terms of dividend
distribution.

- If divided distribution is not made, the Board of Direc-
tors submits to the shareholders the reasons why it was not
distributed and where the undistributed profit was used.

- The Company's Articles of Association, the Capital
Markets Law, the provisions of the Capital Markets Board's
communiqués and the Turkish Commercial Code shall be
complied with in dividend distributions.

The Company's Board of Directors submits its proposal for
dividend distribution to the General Assembly each year and to
shareholders through the annual report prior to the General
Assembly. The Board of Directors' proposal for profit distribution
is discussed and resolved at the General Assembly. The decision
taken in 2022 regarding the profit distribution for 2021 has been
implemented and the necessary notifications have been made to
the official authorities. In addition, the relevant decision was
announced to the public on the same day via the Public Disclo-
sure Platform.
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2.6 Transfer of Shares

There are no provisions restricting the transfer of shares in the
Articles of Association of our Company. According to Article 7 of
the Articles of Association, all of our Company's shares are
registered shares and their transfer is possible in compliance with
the provisions of the legislation.

PUBLIC DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY
3.1 Company Website and its Content

The Company's Turkish and English websites can be accessed at
www.vakifleasing.com.tr.

The Company's website is in compliance with the principles
numbered (2.1.1), (2.1.2) and (2.1.3) of the Corporate Govern-
ance Communiqué (11-17.1) published by the CMB on
03.01.2014.

3.2 Annual Report

The Company's Annual Report is in compliance with the princi-
ples numbered (2.2.1) and (2.2.2.2) of the Corporate Governance
Communiqué (II-17.1) published by the CMB on 03.01.2014.

SHAREHOLDERS
4.1 Informing Stakeholders

Vakif Leasing's shareholders are regularly informed about neces-
sary issues through annual reports, news and announcements on
the website.

In order to ensure accurate and reliable information flow,
information regarding the financial statements announced every
quarter is shared with investors via the website and announced
on PDP. All questions and requests raised by investors are
answered by telephone and e-mail.
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4.2 Shareholders' Participation in Management

Our Company has established two different models for stake-
holders' participation in management.

Committee Meeting: Decisions taken at regular committee
meetings are implemented by our Company.

Suggestion System: Through this system, employees submit their
suggestions for improvement and development in all matters
related to the Company and the suggestions found appropriate
are put into practice.

In addition, "Weekly General Evaluation Meetings" are organised
to inform employees about the general activities and progress of
the Company and to receive their suggestions, and the financial
structure and performance data of the Company are evaluated
together with the employees.

4.3 Human Resources Policy

Our Company's human resources policy is carried out within the
framework of the "Human Resources Directive". We also contin-
ue to work on career planning. Our Company plays an important
role in the success and development of the sector. Vakif Leasing
pays special attention to equipping and developing its employees
with the necessary equipment for productive work, especially
training, and regards its employees as its most important capital.
It employs employees with researcher, visionary, creative and
problem-solving qualities.

All employees in our Company have the understanding of
working with team spirit and have innovative goals.

Recruitments and promotions at Vakif Leasing are carried out
with the decision of the Board of Directors within the framework
of the Human Resources Regulation. There is no discrimination
among the employees of our Company in any matter. Our
employees enjoy full equality in all matters.

4.4 Code of Ethics and Social Responsibility

- Full compliance with statutory regulations

- Honesty, transparency and reliability in relations with custom-
ers, sellers and creditors

- To operate by taking into account the reasons for economic
development as well as profitability

- To respect information and confidentiality and to keep informa-
tion confidential

- Not creating unfair competition by considering the common
interest of the sector.

Vakif Leasing is aware of its social responsibilities towards its
customers, employees and society and endeavours to fulfil these
responsibilities in the best way possible. It complies with all
regulations related to business life, stands behind its commit-
ments disclosed to the public in its services and gives confidence,
encourages its employees to honest and ethical behaviour, takes
all measures related to the safety of the workplace, does not
engage in misleading and deceptive advertising and marketing
activities, complies with and supports the rules prohibiting
discrimination. It endeavours to resolve customer problems
quickly, covers most of the health expenses of its employees, and
continuously strives to improve service quality.

4.5 Sustainability Policy

In accordance with the provisions of the Communiqué on
Amendments to the Capital Markets Board Communiqué on
Corporate Governance (II-17.1) (II-17.1.a), an Environmental and
Social Policy Text and an Environmental and Social Impacts Work-
ing Group have been established with the approval of the Board
of Directors of our company in order to comply with the sustaina-
bility principles and to establish an environmental and social risk
management policy, the implementation of which is voluntary,
and the relevant text has been published under the corporate
communication tab of our website. Sustainability Reports are
available at www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim.

With the working group, which is directed by the relevant
Assistant General Manager, our company makes maximum effort
to comply with sustainability principles and takes into account the
environmental and social impacts of its activities in accordance
with its policy while determining its strategies.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
5.1 Structure and Composition of the Board of Directors
According to Article 8 of the Company's Articles of Association, the structure of the Board of Directors is defined as follows.

"The affairs and administration of the Company are carried out by a board of directors consisting of at least 5 members including the
general manager. The board of directors elects a chairman from among its members and a deputy chairman to act in his absence. The
duties of general manager and chairman of the board of directors cannot be combined in the same person. The members other than the
general manager are elected by the shareholders at the general assembly in accordance with the provisions of the Turkish Commercial
Code. The majority of the members of the board of directors shall consist of non-executive members. Among the non-executive mem-
bers of the Board of Directors, there are independent members who are qualified to perform their duties without being influenced
under any circumstances, and whose number and qualifications are determined in accordance with the regulations of the Capital
Markets Board on Corporate Governance and the provisions of the relevant legislation. The general manager of the Company;, or in his
absence, his deputy, is a natural member of the Board of Directors. The general manager and his/her deputy must have a bachelor's
degree and at least seven years of professional knowledge and experience in the field of finance or business administration. In the imple-
mentation of the provisions of this article, the provisions of the Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies Law No. 6361 and
related legislation are reserved."

Name and Surname Commencement
Date

Hazim AKYOL Chairman of the Board of Directors 26/06/2019
Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors - Independent Member 26/06/2019
Halil CELIK Audit Committee - Chairman 01/04/2022
Corporate Governance Committee - Chairman 01/04/2022
Emine UYUMAZ | Board Member 03/04/2018
Eren SUZEN Board Member 25/06/2020
Corporate Governance Committee - Member 01/04/2022
Board Member - Independent Member 03/04/2018
Savag Atanur KAZAZ | Early Risk Detection Committee - Chairman 01/04/2022
Audit Committee - Member 01/04/2022
Selcuk GOKBAYRAK | Board Member - Independent Member 01/04/2022
Early Risk Detection Committee - Member 01/04/2022
Mustafa ERDIN | Board Member - General Manager 05/05/2021

The Chairman of the Board of Directors has no executive duties. General Manager Mustafa ERDIN is an executive member of
the Board of Directors.

The resumes of the members of the Board of Directors are published in the Annual Report.

In accordance with the CMB's Serial: IV No: 56 of the CMB Communiqué on the Determination and Implementation of
Corporate Governance Principles number is determined as three. It has been determined that Halil CELIK, Savas Atanur
KAZAZ, Selcuk GOKBAYRAK fulfil the independence criteria specified in Principles 4.3.6 and 4.3.7 of the CMB Corporate
Governance Principles and that and 4.3.3.6 and 4.3.7 of the CMB's Corporate Governance Principles, and that these persons
fulfil the independence criteria set forth in the legislation, articles of association and the relevant communiqué. There are
declarations of independence within the framework.

The declarations of the independent members of the Board of Directors regarding their independence and any circumstances
that may impair their independence as of the related activity period there is no situation.
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Partnerships and duties of the members of the Board of Directors
outside the Company:

NAME AND SURNAME TITLE

Hazim AKYOL T. Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.0. Assistant General Manager

Emine UYUMAZ T. Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.. Head of Commercial Loans Allocation

Eren SUZEN T. Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.0.

Head of SME, Retail and Consumer Loans Allocation

5.2 Operating Principles of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall convene at the location of the Compa-
ny's headquarters or at the location requested by the majority of
the members of the Board of Directors as required by the Compa-
ny's business and operations. However, it is obligatory to convene
at least once a month. Even if the meeting is not duly convened,
the presence of all members at the meeting place on a certain day
and time does not prejudice the validity of the meeting. Those
who have the right to attend the meetings of the Board of Direc-
tors of the Company may attend these meetings electronically in
accordance with Article 1527 of the Turkish Commercial Code. The
Company may establish an electronic meeting system that will
enable the right holders to participate and vote in these meetings
electronically in accordance with the provisions of the Commu-
niqué on General Assemblies to be held in Electronic Environment
in commercial companies other than the general assemblies of
joint stock companies, or may purchase services from systems
established for this purpose. In the meetings to be held, it is
ensured that the right holders can exercise their rights specified in
the relevant legislation within the framework specified in the
provisions of the communiqué through the system established in
accordance with this provision of the Articles of Association of the
Company or through the system from which support services will
be purchased. The provisions of the Turkish Commercial Code shall
apply to the meeting quorum and decision quorum of the Board
of Directors.

The agendas of the Board of Directors meetings are determined
according to the issues and authorisations specified in the Articles
of Association. 41 Board of Directors meetings were held during
the period 01.01.2022 - 31.12.2022. The Board of Directors
convenes at the location of the Company's headquarters or at the
location requested by the majority of the members of the Board of
Directors as required by the Company's business and operations.
However, it is obligatory to convene at least once a month. The
provisions of the Turkish Commercial Code shall apply to the meet-
ing quorum and decision quorum of the Board of Directors. The
General Manager's Secretariat is responsible for informing and
communicating with the members of the Board of Directors.
Decisions that need to be disclosed to the public are disclosed to
the publicimmediately after the end of the meeting.

- Determining the fields of activity of the Company and approving
the business and financing plans,

-Issues related to the convening and organisation of the Ordinary /
Extraordinary General Assembly,

- Finalisation of the annual report to be submitted to the General
Assembly,

- Election of the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors and appointment of new members,

- Establishment or dissolution of administrative units, - Appoint-
ment or dismissal of the Chief Executive Officer/General Manager,
- Establishment of committees,

- Merger, demerger, reorganisation, sale of the whole company or
10% of the fixed assets or investment of more than 10%, expendi-
ture of more than 10% of the total assets,

- Determination of the Company's dividend policy and the profit to
be distributed,

- All members actually attend the meetings held on issues such as
capital increase or decrease.

5.3 Number, Structure and Independence of the Committees
Established in the Board of Directors

In order to fulfil the duties and responsibilities of the Board of
Directors of our Company, an Audit Committee consisting of two
members (Chairman - Halil CELIK, Member - Savas Atanur KAZAZ),
a Corporate Governance Committee consisting of three members
(Chairman - Halil CELIK, Member - Eren SUZEN, Member - Gonca
YADIGAR) and an Early Detection of Risk Committee consisting of
two members (Chairman - Savas Atanur KAZAZ, Member - Selcuk
GOKBAYRAK) were formed in accordance with the Corporate
Governance Communiqué required for publicly traded compa-
nies.

The number of members of the Board of Directors of the Company
is 6. Since the number of members of the committees affiliated to
the Board of Directors is higher than the number of members of
the Board of Directors according to the principles specified in the
CMB Corporate Governance Principles and BRSA, the members
serve in more than one committee.

5.4 Risk Management and Internal Control Mechanism
- Internal Control:

The internal control unit, which reports to the Audit Committee
within the Board of Directors, is responsible for identifying the risks
that have occurred or may occur, ensuring that preventive and
mitigating measures are taken against these risks, and reporting
the findings to the Audit Committee periodically (at least twice a
year).
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Company activities, systems and processes; whether it has been
implemented in accordance with legal regulations, management
strategies and policies, and leasing practices; There is a systematic
and disciplined approach to directives, workflows and employee
authority and compliance, and recommendations are made to
identify and prevent risks and take measures to mitigate them.

In order to prevent losses that may affect the achievement of the
Company's objectives, it is aimed to establish an internal control
system to identify, evaluate, monitor and manage potential
credit, market and operational risk factors that may affect the
Company's assets according to impact and probability and there-
fore using the results in decision-making mechanisms.

Effective from 2020, within the scope of the "Communiqué on
the Management and Audit of Information Systems of Financial
Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies" published by the
BRSA in the Official Gazette dated 06.04.2019 and numbered
30737, the Internal Control Units were also assigned the task of
preparing, reviewing and presenting the "Regulatory Compliance
Report" to the Board of Directors. In the same communiqué, it is
emphasised that although external services may be used for the
preparation of the "Risk Assessment Report" and "Security
Breaches Report", the presentation of the reports to the manage-
ment shall be undertaken by the internal control unit or other
units of the Company.

The Internal Control Manager also carries out the duties of ensur-
ing compliance with the legislation of the Financial Crimes Investi-
gation Board as a Compliance Officer, taking necessary measures
throughout the Company;, carrying out training and control activi-
ties and ensuring communication with the Board.

- Risk Management:

The Committee operates under the Early Detection of Risk
Committee within the Board of Directors. It determines the
principles, approaches and basic elements in order to reveal the
risks that the Company will be exposed to in line with its general
strategies and short- and long-term targets and the strategies to
be followed for these risks and reports to the Early Detection of
Risk Committee periodically (recommendation - suggestion; at
least 6 times a year - report; once a year).

Risk management process; it is a cycle in which the risks that may
or may not prevent the achievement of the strategic objectives of
the company are identified, defined, classified, and their priori-
ties are determined, evaluated and monitored as a result of the
risk assessment.

5.5 The Company's Strategic Goals

The strategic goals that our managers create are approving the
evaluation of the previous year and the targets of the next year at
the end of each year. In addition, our Board of Directors evaluates
the achievement of the identified targets.

5.6 Financial Rights

At the Ordinary General Assembly dated May 31, 2022, it was
decided to pay TL 7.590 monthly to the members of the Board of
Directors.

There are no other payments or rights granted to the members of
the Board of Directors. The remunerations and benefits of the
members of the Board of Directors are not determined according
to their performance. Defects and damages that may be caused
by the members of the board of directors during the course of
their employment are not insured.

The Company has not provided any loans or credits to any Board
Member, nor has the Company given any personal loan through
a third party, nor has the Company given any guarantee or collat-
eral, such as indemnity, for the benefit of any third party.

In accordance with the Corporate Governance Principles, the
remunerations and all other benefits provided to the senior
management as well as the members of the Board of Directors
are disclosed to the public through the annual report. However,
the disclosure is not made on the basis of the person but on the
basis of the distinction between the Board of Directors and senior
management.

In 2022, the Company paid TL 920 thousand to the Members of
the Board of Directors and TL 5,765 Thousand to the General
Manager and Assistants of General Manager.
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VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.
ISTANBUL

HERE IS MY DECLARATION OF AUTONOMY WITHIN THE SCOPE OF THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMUNIQUE.

| hereby declare, acknowledge and undertake that

a) I have complied with the principle that the Company, the partnerships in which the Company has management control or significant
influence, the shareholders who control the management of the Company or have significant influence in the Company, and the legal
entities controlled by these shareholders, and myself, my spouse and my relatives by blood or marriage up to the second degree have
not been employed in managerial positions that will assume important duties and responsibilities in the last five years, and that | do not
jointly or individually own more than 5% of the capital or voting rights or privileged shares, or that no significant commercial relationship
has been established,

b) | have complied with the principle of being a partner (5% or more) in companies from which the company purchases or sells services
or products to a significant extent within the framework of agreements made within the last five years, primarily for the audit, (including
tax audit, legal audit, internal audit) rating and consultancy of the company, or being a member of the Board of Directors or an employee
in an executive position that will assume important duties and responsibilities during the periods when services or products are sold,

c) | have professional education, knowledge and experience in order to duly fulfil the duties assigned for being an independent board
member,

¢) I will not be serving as a full time employee at public authorities and institutions after being
elected, except being an academic member at university provided that is in compliance with the relevant legislation,

d) l am residing in Turkey in accordance with the Income Tax Law (I.T.L) dated 31.12.1960 and numbered 193,

e) | am capable to contribute positively to the operations of the corporation, to maintain my objectivity in conflicts of interests between
the corporation and the shareholders, have strong ethical standards, professional reputation and experience to freely take decisions by
considering the rights of the stakeholders,

f) 1 am able to allocate time for the corporation’s business in order to follow up the activities of the corporation and duly fulfil the allocat-
ed duties,

g) | have not conducted membership of board of directors more than a term of six years in the last ten years, from Board of Directors,

g) | am not an independent member of the board of directors in more than three of the corporations as such; the corporation or the
controlling shareholders of the corporation who hold the control of management corporations and in more than five corporations in
total which are admitted to the trading on the exchange,

h) | have not been registered and announced on behalf of the legal entity elected as a member of the Board of Directors,

In case of the emergence of a condition violating my autonomy, | will immediately inform the board of directors for the change to be
declared to the public by me and | will resign from my duties as the member of board of directors and others as the principle requires
since | will lose independence under such circumstance.

01.04.2022
Halil CELIK
Independent Member of the Board of Directors

\\ﬁ

(Kol
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VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.
ISTANBUL

HERE IS MY DECLARATION OF AUTONOMY WITHIN THE SCOPE OF THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMUNIQUE.

| hereby declare, acknowledge and undertake that

a) | have complied with the principle that the Company, the partnerships in which the Company has management control or significant
influence, the shareholders who control the management of the Company or have significant influence in the Company, and the legal
entities controlled by these shareholders, and myself, my spouse and my relatives by blood or marriage up to the second degree have
not been employed in managerial positions that will assume important duties and responsibilities in the last five years, and that | do not
jointly or individually own more than 5% of the capital or voting rights or privileged shares, or that no significant commercial relationship
has been established,

b) I have complied with the principle of being a partner (5% or more) in companies from which the company purchases or sells services
or products to a significant extent within the framework of agreements made within the last five years, primarily for the audit, (including
tax audit, legal audit, internal audit) rating and consultancy of the company, or being a member of the Board of Directors or an employee
in an executive position that will assume important duties and responsibilities during the periods when services or products are sold,

c) | have professional education, knowledge and experience in order to duly fulfil the duties assigned for being an independent board
member,

¢) I will not be serving as a full time employee at public authorities and institutions after being
_elected, except being an academic member at university provided that is in compliance with the relevant legislation,

d) l am residing in Turkey in accordance with the Income Tax Law (I.T.L) dated 31.12.1960 and numbered 193,
e) | am capable to contribute positively to the operations of the corporation, to maintain my objectivity in conflicts of interests between
the corporation and the shareholders, have strong ethical standards, professional reputation and experience to freely take decisions by

considering the rights of the stakeholders,

f) am able to allocate time for the corporation’s business in order to follow up the activities of the corporation and duly fulfil the allocat-
ed duties,

g) | have not conducted membership of board of directors more than a term of six years in the last ten years, from Board of Directors,

g) | am not an independent member of the board of directors in more than three of the corporations as such; the corporation or the
controlling shareholders of the corporation who hold the control of management corporations and in more than five corporations in
total which are admitted to the trading on the exchange,

h) | have not been registered and announced on behalf of the legal entity elected as a member of the Board of Directors,

In case of the emergence of a condition violating my autonomy;, | will immediately inform the board of directors for the change to be
declared to the public by me and | will resign from my duties as the member of board of directors and others as the principle requires

since | will lose independence under such circumstance.

01.04.2022
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[/ DECLARATIONS OF AUTONOMY
WITHIN THE SCOPE OF NOTIFICATION ON DETERMINATION AND
IMPLEMENTATION OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.
ISTANBUL

HERE IS MY DECLARATION OF AUTONOMY WITHIN THE SCOPE OF THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMUNIQUE.

| hereby declare, acknowledge and undertake that

a) I have complied with the principle that the Company, the partnerships in which the Company has management control or significant
influence, the shareholders who control the management of the Company or have significant influence in the Company, and the legal
entities controlled by these shareholders, and myself, my spouse and my relatives by blood or marriage up to the second degree have
not been employed in managerial positions that will assume important duties and responsibilities in the last five years, and that | do not
jointly or individually own more than 5% of the capital or voting rights or privileged shares, or that no significant commercial relationship
has been established,

b) I have complied with the principle of being a partner (5% or more) in companies from which the company purchases or sells services
or products to a significant extent within the framework of agreements made within the last five years, primarily for the audit, (including
tax audit, legal audit, internal audit) rating and consultancy of the company, or being a member of the Board of Directors or an employee
in an executive position that will assume important duties and responsibilities during the periods when services or products are sold,

c) | have professional education, knowledge and experience in order to duly fulfil the duties assigned for being an independent board
member,

¢) Iwill not be serving as a full time employee at public authorities and institutions after being
elected, except being an academic member at university provided that is in compliance with the relevant legislation,

d) I am residing in Turkey in accordance with the Income Tax Law (I.T.L) dated 31.12.1960 and numbered 193,
e) | am capable to contribute positively to the operations of the corporation, to maintain my objectivity in conflicts of interests between
the corporation and the shareholders, have strong ethical standards, professional reputation and experience to freely take decisions by

considering the rights of the stakeholders,

f) lam able to allocate time for the corporation’s business in order to follow up the activities of the corporation and duly fulfil the allocat-
ed duties,

g) | have not conducted membership of board of directors more than a term of six years in the last ten years, from Board of Directors,

g) | am not an independent member of the board of directors in more than three of the corporations as such; the corporation or the
controlling shareholders of the corporation who hold the control of management corporations and in more than five corporations in
total which are admitted to the trading on the exchange,

h) I have not been registered and announced on behalf of the legal entity elected as a member of the Board of Directors,

In case of the emergence of a condition violating my autonomy, | will immediately inform the board of directors for the change to be
declared to the public by me and I will resign from my duties as the member of board of directors and others as the principle requires

since | will lose independence under such circumstance.

01.04.2022
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AFFILIATION REPORT 2022

The Affiliation Report Prepared As Per Article 199 of Turkish Commercial Code

Pursuant to Article 199 of the Turkish Commercial Code No. 6102, which entered into force on July 1, 2012, Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S.,
the controlling shareholder of its parent, TVakiflar Bankasi T.A.O. and the report on the relationship of the controlling shareholder with
the affiliated partners. Within the framework of the information presented to the Board of Directors, Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S. In all
transactions carried out in 2018 with the controlling partner and the controlling partner of the controlling shareholder, the transaction is
performed or any action is taken or avoided in accordance with the known circumstances in which the transaction is performed. And that
there were no measures requiring equalization in this framework.
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" BRIEFING ON OTHER ISSUES

EXPLANATIONS ON THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

V TL 31,105 thousand of the paid-in capital of TL 250,000 thousand, which was increased in cash in 2021, was completed in 2022. The
increased capital was registered in 2022. In 2022, the Company increased its paid-in capital from TL 500,000 thousand to TL 600,000
thousand. The increased amount was covered from the profit of 2021. There has been a change in the organization chart.

/4 There is no research and development activity in 2022.
/4 During the 2022 accounting period, Giiney Bagimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Musavirlik A.S. conducted a limited
independent audit on 30.06.2022 and an independent audit on 31.12.2022. In addition, the Company's financial statements are

subject to quarterly tax audits by Vezin YMM A.S. within the scope of full corporate tax certification. has been passed.

There are no ongoing lawsuits or legal proceedings against the Company that may have a negative impact on the Company's finan-
cial position or results.

There are no administrative and judicial sanctions imposed on the members of the company and the governing body due to the
practices contrary to the provisions of the legislation.

/74 In 2022, no extraordinary general assembly meeting was held.
/74 The Company has not acquired any of its own shares.

Vakif Leasing's turnover increased by 51% in 2022 compared to the previous year, rising from USD 265,618 thousand to USD 402,095
thousand. The number of transactions, which was 758 in 2021, increased by 22% to 928 in 2022.

Vakif Leasing's capitalized contract amount increased by 50% in 2022 compared to the previous year and amounted to USD 319,019
thousand. In 2021, the capitalized contract amount was realized as 212,222 thousand USD. In 2022, the number of activated
contracts increased by 48% from 652 in 2021 to 964 in 2022.

Aiming for disciplined growth, the Company has been selective in its growth in order to manage the pressure on profit margins,
which has increased as a result of competition, in an effective and balanced manner, while not compromising on its strategy of
building a broad-based and high-quality portfolio in terms of the volume of transactions realized.

As of the end of 2022, the paid-in capital of the Company is TL 600,000 thousand and there is no evidence and opinion that the
capital is uncovered and the Company is insolvent.
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2022 IN THE WORLD AND TURKEY / GLOBAL ECONOMY

2022 was a year dominated by supply chain disruptions, the
sharyp rise in energy prices caused by the Russia-Ukraine war,
and concerns over Covid-19.

Real Growth [y, %)

World . Developing Coumlries

Diata Source: "IMF forecasl.

After the rapid recovery in global markets following the pandem-
ic, inflation has risen to the highest levels of the last 40 years all
over the world as a result of disruptions in the supply chain, the
sharp rise in energy prices caused by the Russia-Ukraine war, and
the ultra-loose monetary and fiscal policies that started to be
implemented worldwide with the pandemic. In response, central
banks, particularly in the USA, began raising interest rates at a
faster pace than in the past in order to combat inflation. Towards
the end of 2022, with signs of a peak in inflation, an idea started
to emerge about where the central banks' interest rate hike
process would end. However, given that inflation has been the
highest in the last 40 years, it will not be easy to bring inflation
down to the levels targeted in previous years, despite the sharp
interest rate hikes. The world economy, which completed 2021
with 6% growth, is expected to grow by around 3% in 2022 due to
monetary tightening.

After a sharp contraction in 2020, the USA economy displayed a
positive growth performance in 2021, growing by 5.7%, above
expectations. Thus, the country's economy recorded the highest
annual growth since 1984. In 2022, the USA economy is expected
to grow by around 0.5%. In 2022, employment data improved
along with the recovery. The unemployment rate, which was 4%
at the beginning of 2022, fell to pre-pandemic levels of 3.5% in
July 2022 and hovered around 3.7% in the last quarter of 2022.

As a result of the pressure on prices caused by the deterioration
in the supply chain and the sharp rise in energy costs due to the
Russian-Ukrainian war, the rise in inflation in the USA, which
started in 2021, continued in 2022 and inflation rose above the
target level of 2%. From 7.1% at the beginning of 2022, inflation
reached 9.1% in June, the highest level since 1981. Inflation came
in below expectations at 7.1% in November and declined on an
annual basis, indicating that the worst may be behind us.
Inflation, which was 7.1% in November, was below expectations
and declined on an annual basis, indicating that the worst of
inflation may be over. The annual increase in inflation is expected
to continue slowing down next year. Inflation in the USA is
expected to fall to 6.5% by the end of 2022 and 3.1% by the end
of 2023.

The Eurozone economy started 2022 with the risks posed by the
Russia-Ukraine war. Regional proximity and the energy depend-
ence of countries in the Eurozone such as Germany, Italy and
Hungary on Russia have raised expectations that the Eurozone
will enter a recession. However, a mild winter and a drop of up to
80% in natural gas prices have eased recession concerns for the
region's economy. The Eurozone economy is expected to grow by
3.4%in 2022.

In 2022, as countries recovered from the pandemic, the
Russia-Ukraine war changed the balance in the markets.

The economic effects of the ongoing war between Russia and
Ukraine, which started on February 24, had an impact on global
markets throughout 2022. The main effects of the war on the
markets were the increase in risk perception and the pressure on
commodity prices such as grain and oil caused by the fact that
two countries that are major grain importers were at war. As a
result of Russia's aggression against Ukraine, the United States,
European countries and Japan announced various sanctions
against Russia. The USA has stopped buying oil from Russia. Due
to the risk perception created by the war and the sanctions
imposed afterwards, gold and the dollar, which are seen as safe
havens, experienced rapid rises. The increased risks of the
sanctions, particularly in the energy market, have had a negative
impact on the European economy, which is particularly depend-
ent on energy imports from Russia, causing an energy crisis in the
region.

While the effects of Russia's operation in Ukraine were priced in
global markets, commodity prices, especially gold, rose as
safe-haven purchases increased. Then, as a result of Russia's
aggression against Ukraine, the United States, European
countries and Japan announced various sanctions against Russia.
The USA has stopped buying oil from Russia. The dollar, which
was seen as a safe haven due to the risk perception created by
the war and the sanctions imposed afterwards, continued to rise
rapidly. On the other hand, concerns over global growth, especial-
ly in the last quarter of the year, led to a decline in commodity
prices, particularly oil.
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In 2022, aggressive interest rate hikes were implemented
globally.

In November 2021, the Fed announced its decision to reduce
assets, and although Fed thought that the rise in inflation in the
first months of the year was temporary, Fed realized its first rate
hike in March 2022. Thus, the Fed raised interest rates at its
March meeting for the first time since November 2018. At its
March meeting, the Fed adopted a more hawkish stance than in
the past and raised interest rates by 25 basis points, signalling 6
rate hikes for the rest of the year. After raising rates by a total of
425 basis points from March to December, the Fed slowed the
pace of rate hikes in December. The Fed is expected to end its rate
hikes in the first quarter of 2023.

In its statement, the Fed said that continued increases in the
target range for the federal funds rate would be appropriate for
monetary policy to remain restrictive enough to bring inflation
back to 2% over time. In the Bank's statements, it was noted that
the cumulative tightening in monetary policy, delays in the
impact of monetary policy on economic activity and inflation,
economic and financial developments will be taken into account
when determining the pace of interest rate hikes.

The European Central Bank (ECB) was among the countries that
switched to a tightening monetary policy by starting to raise
interest rates in 2022 amid rising inflation concerns. The ECB first
raised interest rates by 50 basis points in July, thus ending the
eight-year negative interest rate policy. The ECB, which raised
interest rates by 75 basis points in September and October and 50
basis points in December, increased interest rates by 250 basis
points during the year. At the end of the year, the main refinanc-
ing rate rose to 2.50%, the marginal lending facility to 2.75% and
the deposit rate to 2.00%. The ECB plans to continue raising
interest rates for some time and to start monetary tightening in
March 2023.

Contrary to the tightening monetary policies of central banks in
developed countries, the Bank of Japan (BoJ) maintained its
policy of keeping the 10-year yield target at zero and the bench-
mark interest rate negative throughout 2022. As a result, the
Japanese yen suffered one of the fastest depreciations in its
history. Although Japan's inflation rate was lower than in other
countries, it reached 4%, the highest level in recent years. The BoJ
noted that the rise in inflation was due to external, not internal
reasons. At the end of the year, the Bol raised the vyield target
band for the 10-year Japanese government bond from 25 basis
points to 50 basis points to give monetary policy more flexibility.
In the statement, it was pointed out that inflation expectations
have risen, while the economy continues to grow. BoJ widened
the target band for the yield curve but kept the yield target for
10-year bonds at around 0%. The vyield target for short-term
bonds was maintained at -0.10%. On the other hand, Bol's
surprise change in the vyield target band for 10-year Japanese
government bonds was perceived as the first sign that Bol's
monetary policy may change in the coming period.

Despite the practice of most countries to end COVID-19 meas-
ures, China, the epicentre of the pandemic, has resisted the
zero-covid policy. Trade tensions with the USA, the zero-covid
policy, the supply chain problems caused by the over-depend-
ence of many companies on China, the relocation of their produc-
tion facilities and factories, and the problems in the housing
market have led the Chinese economy to enter a lower growth
period compared to previous years. On the other hand, the
quarantine in Shanghai, China's financial centre, as a result of a
record number of cases and the subsequent zero-covid policy led
to sharp declines in commodity prices, especially oil, considering
that China is the world's largest oil importer. But in December,
amid growing protests and growth concerns, China ended its zero
covid policy. Although this step will increase covid cases in China
in the short term, it signalled a shift to a growth-oriented policy in
the medium and long term.

In 2021, the fear of high inflation caused by rising costs globally
caused many central banks such as Brazil, Mexico, Hungary and
Russia to raise interest rates. In 2022, tight monetary policy was
followed by central banks. Central banks in developed and
emerging economies, particularly the Fed and the ECB, have
raised interest rates sharply to combat inflation. he Swiss Nation-
al Bank (SNB) cut its policy rate from -0.25% to 0.50% at its
September meeting. Thus, the 8-year period of negative interest
rates in the country came to an end. While the negative interest
rate era has come to an end in Switzerland, Japan remains the
only developed country to maintain its negative interest rate
policy. However, it remains to be seen whether Japan will
maintain its negative interest rate in 2023 after the recent
change.

Central Banks Policy Interest Rates (Source: Reuters]
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ECONOMY OF TURKEY

The Turkish economy recorded strong growth in the first two
quarters of the year.

Real Growth Rate in Turkey (y-y, %)
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The Turkish economy grew by 7.5% in the first quarter of 2022
compared to the same quarter of the previous year, having
completed 2021 with a growth rate of 11% thanks to the revival in
domestic demand and the contribution of a competitive
exchange rate. While the services sector was the growth driver in
the second quarter, the expenditure component that boosted
growth was household consumption. Thus, the Turkish economy
maintained its strong outlook in the second quarter and grew by
7.7% on an annual basis, close to expectations. The Turkish
economy grew by 3.9% on an annual basis in the third quarter of
the year, below the market expectations. Based on the realiza-
tions of the first three quarters, the Turkish economy is expected
to end the year with a growth rate of around 5%, although
growth will slow slightly in the last quarter, according to prelimi-
nary and industrial production data.

Inflation, which reached historically high levels during the year,
ended the year in decline.
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Both consumer inflation and producer inflation started 2022 at
double-digit levels and, after reaching historically high levels
during the year, ended the year with a decline thanks to the base
effect. The Consumer Price Index (CPI) rose as high as 85.5% in
October, while the Domestic Producer Price Index (D-PPI) rose as
high as 157.7% in October, due to factors such as increased global
inflationary pressure, rising commodity prices, exchange rate
developments, and price pressure caused by global supply
constraints. Thus, inflation rates, which had reached historically
high levels, retreated at the end of the year thanks to the stable
course of the exchange rate and the base effect as well as the
decline in commodity prices, especially oil prices. Thus, consumer
inflation was realized as 64.3% and producer inflation as 97.7% at
the end of the year.

The current account balance rose sharply in 2022 due to
the rise in commodity prices.
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Throughout 2021, the current account deficit, which was
supported by the positive export performance, widened at the
start of 2022. This expansion was driven by higher energy prices
as well as the rise in energy imports in both quantity and price
terms due to the harsh winter conditions compared to the
previous period. Thus, in the first quarter of 2022, current
account deficit realized as 18.1 billion dollars compared to the
same period of the previous year. This was mainly due to the fact
that despite the significant increase in service revenues
compared to the previous year, especially with the end of the
pandemic, the foreign trade deficit increased by 201% in the
same period due to the sharp increase in commodity prices,
especially oil prices, following the tension between Russia and
Ukraine. The current account deficit, which was 4 billion dollars in
the first eleven months of 2021, was realized as 42 billion dollars
in the first eleven months of 2022. In the 12-month cumulative
total, the current account deficit, which was 7.3 billion dollars in
2021, was realized as 45 billion dollars in 2022. The current
account deficit is expected to be 47 billion dollars in 2022.
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The budget balance recovered in the last months of 2022.

Budget Deficit / GDP (%)
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Although the budget balance deteriorated in early 2022 due to
the transfer to BOTAS and the pressure on the budget from
FX-protected deposits (FXPD), it recovered as the impact of these
effects diminished near the end of the year. The budget balance,
which posted a deficit in January due to the increase in tax
revenues caused by inflation and the profit transferred from the
CBRT to the Treasury in February, continued to run a deficit in
March and April due to the transfer to BOTAS. In May, the budget
balance posted a record surplus and recovered in the second
quarter of the year thanks to the rapid increase in corporate tax as
well as the rise in value added tax on imports due to the rise in
inflation and exchange rates. In June, the budget balance posted
a deficit due to the pressure on expenditures from the Treasury's
portion of FX-protected deposit payments. In the third quarter of
the year, the increase in current transfers had a negative impact
on the budget balance. The budget, which posted the highest
deficit of the year in October, recovered in November as there
was no transfer to BOTAS and the effect of FX-protected deposits
diminished with the stable course of the exchange rate. Budget
balance posted a deficit in the last month of the year after posting
a surplus in November. Having posted a deficit of 201.5 billion
TRY in 2021, the balance posted a deficit of 139.1 billion TRY in
the same period of 2022, indicating that the budget displayed a
stronger outlook compared to last year and the MTP target.
Taken together with the projection that the Turkish economy will
end 2022 with a growth rate of around 5%, this suggests that the
budget deficit/GDP will end 2022 below the 3.4% level
announced in the MTP in September.

CBRT cut the policy rate by 500 basis points.

CART cut the policy rate by 500 basks poits,
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In 2022, the Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey (CBRT)
conducted a comprehensive policy framework review process
that prioritized the Turkish lira in all policy instruments, which it
called the Liraization Strategy.

Having kept the policy rate unchanged at 14% in the first seven
months of the year, CBRT surprisingly cut interest rates by 100
basis points in August. The CBRT then cut interest rates in
September, October and November, and lowered the policy rate
to 9% in 2022 by a total of 500 basis points. Thus, the CBRT
diverged from the central banks of developed and emerging
economies that raised interest rates due to rising inflation
concerns.
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VAKIF LEASING IN 2022

Vakif Leasing's turnover increased by 51% in 2022 compared to the previous year, rising from USD 265,618 thousand to USD 402,095
thousand. The number of transactions, which was 758 in 2021, increased by 22% to 928 in 2022.

Vakif Leasing's activated contract amount increased by 50% in 2022 compared to the previous year and amounted to USD 319,019
thousand. In 2021, the number of contracts activated was realized as 212,222 thousand USD. In 2022, the number of activated
contracts, which was 652 in 2021, increased by 48% to 964 contracts.

Thousand USD-VAKIF LEASING

Period 2022 2021 Increase %
First Quarterly Period 47,366 57,177 -17,2
Second Quarterly Period 61,265 30,126 103,4
Third Quarterly Period 89,685 66,541 34,8
Fourth Quarterly Period 120,703 58,378 106,8
TOTAL 319,019 212,222 | 50,3
Number of Contracts 964 652 47,9

/74 Vakif Leasing
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GENERAL EVALUATION

Vakif Leasing is one of the oldest players in the Turkish financial leasing sector and has continued to play a pioneering role in the introduc-
tion and development of financial leasing since 1988.

Having intermediated USD 402 million worth of fixed asset investments in 2022, Vakif Leasing has made significant contributions to the
development of our country's economy, primarily by supporting SMEs.

Aiming to provide financial intermediation to SMEs and investors in the commercial segment, which constitute a significant portion of
its customer portfolio, Vakif Leasing continues on its way by increasing its market share in the sector.

With 34 years of experience, sector knowledge and solution-oriented employees, Vakif Leasing, which offers alternative financing
options, increased its assets to TL 13,220 million with a transaction volume of USD 402 million in 2022 with an increase of 110%
compared to the previous year, its financial leasing receivables to TL 10,801 million with an increase of 89%, and its shareholders' equity
to TL 1,325 million with an increase of 89%, and continued its growth trend.

In line with its sustainable targets in the coming period, Vakif Leasing aims to concentrate especially on production machinery and aims
to increase its market share in 2023 by supporting investments regardless of scale and sector.

Our targets for 2023 are to increase the number of new customers and to grow our transaction volume in a healthy manner, taking into
account Turkey's domestic market growth and commercial loan demand.

Vakif Leasing, which is represented by branches in Ankara, Izmir, Adana, Bursa and Antalya in order to provide on-site service and rapid
response to investors, continues to work towards achieving its targets with its wide customer portfolio and service network throughout
the country, backed by the corporate strength of Vakifbank's nearly one thousand branches.
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MAJOR FINANCIAL INDICATORS

TOTAL ASSETS (Thousand TL)

13,219,851

+%109.9

Vakif Leasing's total assets

increased by 109.9% compared

to the previous year and

amounted to TL 13,219,851 thousand.

6,296,924
3,712,219
3,031,147

3,085,523

LEASE TRANSACTIONS (net) (Thousand TL)

+%72.0

Vakif Leasing's total leasing
transactions compared to the
previous year 72.0% increase

to TL 8,203,283 thousand increased.

8,203,283

4,769,551

3,055,520

2,579,147

2,513,672

LOANS RECEIVED

10,850,603

+%111.4

Vakif Leasing's total leasing

assets loans compared to the
previous year 111.4% increase

to TL 10,850,603 thousand increased.

5,133,454

3,091,749

2,600,857

2,521,632
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MAJOR FINANCIAL INDICATORS

EQUITY (Thousand TL)

2022

o | p— A

1,324,939
2020 355,161 . Total shareholders' equity of Vakif

year1,324,939 thousand TL

Leasing with an increase of 88.6%
2019 I L

compared to the previous
247,159

GROSS OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS (Thousand TL)

2022

2o | [

2020 103,373

2019 I ﬁ g’

22,410

+%76.1

Gross operating profit of

Vakif Leasing with an increase

of 76.1% compared to the previous
year 227,293 thousand TL.

227,293

NET PROFIT (Thousand TL)

2022 518,666

2020

2019 I 1'578

40,055

+%304.9

Vakif Leasing's total leasing assets
loans compared to the previous
year 111.4% increase to

TL 10,850,603 thousand increased.

2018

[74 Vakif Leasing
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v MAJOR FINANCIAL INDICATORS

AND RATIOS

MAJOR RATIOS

Return on assets ratio (ROA) - (Profit (loss) for the period / average assets)

NPL Ratio - (Non-Performing Loans (gross) / (Non-Performing Loans (gross) + Leasing Receivables))

Return on Equity Ratio (ROE) - (Net Profit / (Loss) / (Average Equity))

[ Vakif Leasing

Future Towards You
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PRESS RELEASE

f.=:571) JCR Eurasia Rating
Ik‘"“"-\—'-""rr‘l CHAE, g of e (ool it ey 22 #
Rating Notification Form
Rating Agency : JCR AVRASYA RATING A.S
Rated Agency : Vakif Financial Leasing A.S.
Address : Maslak Mahallesi Tagsyoncasi Sokak No:1/F F2 Blok Kat:2 34485 Sariyer, Istanbul, Tiirkiye
Telephone and Fax No :0212 352 56 73 -0212 352 56 75
Date / Time : 26/04/2022
Subject : SPK Seri VIl Article 26 of the Communiqué on Principles No 51

CMB - Accounting Standards Department
Merkezi Kayit Kurulusu A.S - Public Disclosure Platform
“Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S.” Evaluated by JCR Eurasia.

e Improvement in profitability indicators to support internal equity creation,

@ In 2021, the significant improvement in the NPL ratio and the fact that this ratio remained below the industry average,
@ Balanced leasing receivables and financial liabilities that mitigate the effects of currency volatility,

e Advantages of being a bank subsidiary,

e Strong and reputable shareholding structure providing various advantages,

e High compliance with corporate governance practices and continuity of well-established risk management practices,
® Experienced, qualified management staff in the leasing industry,

@ Transactions of Participation Banks increase competition in the sector,

o A volatile interest rate and exchange rate environment that increases uncertainty,

@ Highly competitive and volatile market conditions,

In essence, within the scope of the above issues, "Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S" Long Term National Institutional Credit Rating has been
revised from A (tr) to AA- (tr) and all ratings have been as follows.

Long Term National Agency Credit Rating AA- (tr) / (Stable View)
Short Term National Corporate Credit Rating J1+ (tr) / (Stable View)
Long Term International Foreign Currency Corporate Credit Rating BB (tr) / (Stable View)
Short Term International Foreign Currency Corporate Credit Rating J3(tr) / (Stable View)
Long Term International Local Currency Corporate Credit Rating BB (tr)/ (Stable View)
Short Term International Local Currency Corporate Credit Rating J3 (tr) / (Stable View)
Long Term National Issue Rating AA-(tr)/ (Stable View)
Short Term National Issue Rating J1+ (tr) / (Stable View)

With Our Respects, .

JCR AVRASYA DERECELENDIRME A.S.

Zeki Metin Coktan Sevket Giileg

Group President Group President

Copyright ©2007,JCR Eurasia Rating, Maslak Mahallesi Tagyoncasi Sokak No:1 / F F2 Blok Kat: 2 34485 Sariyer/ Istanbul / Tiirkiye
Telephone Number:+90 (212) 352 56 73 Fax: +90 (212) 352 56 75

Unauthorised reproduction is prohibited. All rights reserved. All information has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable
by JCR Eurasia rating and from information/ disclosures provided by the Company. However, JCR Eurasia Rating does not guarantee
the authenticity, accuracy and adequacy of this information. JCR Eurasia Rating ratings are objective and independent opinions on
the creditworthiness of the security and the issuer and should not be regarded as an investment recommendation to buy, hold or sell
any security or issue bonds.

This rating report has been prepared in accordance with the methodologies registered and approved by CMB (Capital Markets
Board), BRSA (Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency) and internationally recognised rating principles and guidelines and is not
covered by NRSRO (Nationally Recognised Statistical Rating Organization) regulations.

http://www.jcrer.com.tr
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{Convenience translation of a report on financial statements originally prepared and issued in Turkish)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Vakif Finansal Kiralama Anonim Sirketi,

A) Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

1)  Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Vakif Finansal Kiralama AS. (“the
Company™) which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022 and the statement
of profit or loss, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in
sharcholders’ equity, statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Vakif Finansal Kiralama A $. as at 31 December 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows.
for the vear then ended in accordance with the Communigue on Financial Leasing, Factoring and Uniform
chart of Accounts which shall be applied by Finance and Saving Finance Companies published in Official
Gazertte dated December 24, 2013 and numbered 28861 and Regulation, Communique and Circular on
Accounting Policies of Financial Leasing, Factoring, Finance and Saving Finance Companies and their
Financial Statements and announcements published by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Authority
(“BRSA™) together referred as “BRSA Accounting and Financial Reporting Legislation” which includes
provisions of Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS™) for the matters which are not regulated by
the aforementioned regulations.

2)  Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Independent Auditing Standards (InAS) which are part of the
Turkish Auditing Standards as issued by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards
Authority of Turkey (POA). Our responsibilitics under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements scction of our report. We are
independent of the Company in aceordance with the Code of Ethics for Independent Auditors (Code of
Ethics) as issued by the POA, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion,

3)  Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those marters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial

statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

A mambes Sem of Emat B Toung (iobal Limésd
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Key Audit Matter

How the kev audit matter addressed in the audit

Impairment of finance lease receivables

The determination of impairment of financial
leasing receivables and accounting of losses
related to receivables is an  important
Jurisdiction for management due to the
importance and timing of balances and the
complexity and subjectivity in determining the
credit worthiness for receivables that do not
comply with the timing specified in the BRSA
Accounting  and  Financial  Reporting
Legislation. The mentioned risk is the inability
to determine the financial leasing receivables
which are impaired and not to allocate
reasonable impairment provision for the
related receivables. Provisions for financial
lease receivables are disclosed in Note 6.

In addition to our current audit procedures, our audit
procedures include the assessment and testing of the
operational effectivencss of key controls in place to
determine the allocation, accounting, monitoring,
derecognition of financial leasing receivables and
impaired finance lease receivables and  their
provisions. In addition, in accordance with our risk
assessment, whether the financial leasing receivables
selected through sampling is subject to impairment
according to the BRSA Accounting and Financial
Reporting Legislation, and the adequacy of the
provision for related reccivables in case of
impairment is evaluated.

4)  Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial

Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with the “BRSA Accounting and Financial Reporting Legislation”, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary 1o enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability 1o
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to ccase
operations, or has no realistic altermative but to do so.

Those charged with governance is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

A member firm of Emst & Young Global Limied
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5)  Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
In an independent audit, as auditors our responsibilities are:

Cwr objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with InAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

Asg part of an audit in accordance with InAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors” report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
lo cease Lo conlinue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

A member firm of Ermat & Young Global Limdled 2
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors” report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

B) Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) Pursuant to the fourth paragraph of Article 402 of the Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”) No,
6102; no significant matter has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the Company’s
bookkeeping activities for the period 1 January 2022 - 31 December 2022 are not in compliance
with TCC and provisions of the Company’s articles of association in relation to financial
reporting.

2} Pursuant to the fourth paragraph of Article 402 of the TCC; the Board of Dircctors provided us
the necessary explanations and required documents in connection with the audit.

3)  Auditors” report on Risk Management System and Committee prepared in accordance with
paragraph 4 of Article 398 of TCC is submitted to the Board of Directors of the Company on
February 10, 2023,

The partner in charge of the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Emre Celik.

Guney Bagmsnz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Miisavirlik Anonim Sirketi
pberfin qf Ernstde Young Global Limited

10 February 2023
Istanbul, Turkey

& member fiem of Emesl & Young Global Limies 4
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VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA AS,

DECEMBER 31, 2022 AS AT
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (BALANCE SHEET)
{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (*TL") unless otherwise indicated)

Curreal Period Prier Peried
ASSETS 31 Ik e 2021 LInt ber 2021
Nade TL FC Totsd TL F Tastal

L CASH. CASH EQUIVALENTS AND BALANCES AT CENTRAL BANK ] 1885838 L156,604 LTALIMS  DEaaT SATRX TR
1L FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS {Net)
II.  DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS
. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

OTHER COMPRENENSIVE INCOME (Nety & 4,781 . 46,781 6,454 . ThANd
Vo FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST {Ned) 1] ERNESLERE N N T] ] EIOSR4I  LIEO9D  MATAORD  4R1LSER
%1 Factoring Receivables - - - -
510 Discourted Factering Recervables (Neth
511 Odber Factonng Recenvables
22 Savings Financeg Receivables
521 Poolsd Funds
527 Eeuty
33 Fmancing Loans
5E1 Consumer Loams
237 Credit Cards
533 basallmen Commercial Loans = - - . .
54 Leme Reccavables (Met) L] 40 795 4 104 455 EM5283 LIZETIZ 1LA0HT0 4769550
S0 Faenes Lease Receivables 6,106,482 4604976 10201458 01508358 420788 5700300
542 Opeerational Leane Recenvables . .
543 Usearned kncome () (2009657} (SHEARE)  (ZAURITA)  (RTREAE) (619000 (M175E)
55 Cober Frnancaal Asscts Measured st Amortsed Cost - - -
56  MowPaforming Loans [ 46,157 174,537 220,654 49,687 G208 200780
57 Expected Credil Lows (-} Specafic Provisoss (-} & (29,719 (98.415) (12801340 (340 (IZE963) (168,373
VI INVESTMENTS IN ASSOTATES, SUBSIDIARIES ANTY

JOINT VERTURES -
Bl Eevestments i Associates (Net)
f?  Encstinmb m Sobaadoses [Net)
6.3 Joinily Contredled Pamserships (B Ventmes ) (Net) . . . -
VIL  TANGIRLE ASSETS (Net) T 1,749 - 91,749 28,990 -
VIIL INTANGIBLE ASSETS ANI GUMMIWILL {™et) B 1063 - 1,03 BHd - &84
IX.  INVESTMENT FROFERTY (Net) . . . . . .
X CIRRENT TAX ASSETS i L6 X0 - 86,218 HEAT - ER62
XL DEFERRED TAX ASSET L] . . . . . .
XIL OTHER ASSETS 1 HO2,TSE 1054816 LESTS6E 13400 50534 639,797

SUBTOTAL 6007541 6504008 13,091,371 LSETHIT 4TINI0T 6,296504
XL ASSETS CLASSIFIED A% HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED

OPFERATIONS (Net) ] 128450 . 118,481
151 Held for Sale 128,450 . 118,450
133 Mem Curvens Ausets From Discontmied Operatioen = = =

TOTAL ASSETS 6025821 6.304,000 13219851 LETGE1T 4TIRI0T 6206524

The accompanying notes set out on pages 10 to 58 from an integral part of these financial statements.
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VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA AS,

DECEMBER 31, 2022 AS AT

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (BALANCE SHEET)
{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated)

Current Period Prior Period
— LIABILITIES 51 December 2022 31 December 2021
Mote TL FC Total T PO Tousl
L LOANS RECEIVED 12 GEILESE 4237718 I0ESO600  SSTERS 41TEES 5130454
|18 FACTORING PAYABLES - - - - - =
. LIABILITIES FROM THE SAVING FUND POOL - - -
. LEASE PAYARLES 13 180 - 150 M - 171
¥, MARKETAELE SECURITIES {Net) 14 = - - - - =
FINANCIAL LIABILTTIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
VL FROFIT OR LOSS - . - = = =
Wil DBERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIARILITIES 15 = = = .58 . KIS
VI PROVISIONS 16 15,185 0T 15,197 1LR32 3ITD 4RO2
g1 Provision for Restructurning - - . - = =
31 Reserves For Emplayes Benelits 15927 = 15927 ] . TIME
LE] Crereral Loan Less Provisions 6,16 9258 o7 B36% 112 MIT 40782
&4 Oither provisions . . . . . .
X CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES 1 30,331 = S0,331 ALET = 1367
X DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 1 95,933 - 95,935 11,742 - 11,742
XL SUBORDINATED DEBRT - - - - - -
XIL  OTHER LIABILITIES 17 MEALY 564,160 K92,578 TRIT4 ITIAE MEIE
SUBTOTAL TAOIO2T 4801085  TLEG4IIL  L1IZA0T 4SELETS 5S044E0
LIABILITIES RELATED T ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND
XL DISCONTINUED OFERATIONS [Net) - - - - - -
131 Held For Sale - . . - - -
132 Related s Discostinued Opermtioes. - - - - - -
XL EQUITY 18 1A24.03% = 1. 324.93%  TOrA44 = TRA44
141 Tssued capital S0 = GO0 468 EOS - AR ERS
142 Capital Reserves 1,662 - | G52 513 - 513
1421 Equity Shase Premiuns 1,368 - 1366 B - -
1422 Skare Cancellation Profits - - - - - -
1423 Orher Capial Reserves 204 - 294 13 - 13
Other Accumulated Comprehensive Income That Will Not Be
143 Reclassalbed Is Profit or Loss 12029 - N20% 40354 - AD3se
Oither Accusmulated Comgrehensive Iecome That Will Be Reclassified In
144 Profis Or Loss - B . . . .
145 Prodit Reserves 92,682 = 92 GE2 G611 = el
1451  Legal Beserves 20,737 = 20.737 14,333 - 14,333
1452 Sumory Reserves - - - - - -
1453  Exirsordinary Reserves T1L4E 71545 20,278 50,278
1454 Onher Profie Reserves B B . . - -
146 Peofitor Loss RIERL 18,388 128071 128,071
1461 Price Years' Profit or Loss - - . - = -
1462 Curent Persad Net Profi er Loss S18.566 = SI8.566 1184071 128071
TOTAL LIABILITIES BAM146 4800985 13219851 1EI4851 4451070 6,296,924

The accompanying notes set oul on pages 10 10 58 from an integral part of these fnancial statements.
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VAKIF FINANSAL KiRALAMA AS.

DECEMBER 31, 2022 AS AT
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated)

Curremt Perbod Prier Period
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 31 December 2032 31 December 2021

Note L ¥ Tatal L FC Total
L IRKEVOCABLE FACTORING TRANSACTIONS - . -
I REVOCABLE FACTORING TRANSACTIONS - - - - - -
L COLLATERALS RECEIVED I3 d24THLO04  BROGHLERD 1M1 ABSSRY 107ETABD 6T0SM1 TESG4STE
IV, COLLATERALS GIVEN - - - - - -
V. COMMITMENTS I 186956 LES6110 SE16066 546159 1540868 1087027
51 lrevocable Commitments TILIEY  SUSIED 1 3D6ST2 210496 4SD4ET 66353
52 Revocable Comsitments 1238773 1280721 2459404 S34665  1.088.38] 1423044
521  Lease Commitments LIMTTE 1260721 2499404 ¥l4A63  L0SS3E1 1421044

52001 Fnance Lease Comnminsts 1,238,773 1260721 2499494 34663 1,088.38] 1.423.044
3212 Openacional Lease Commsdinsents - = = = = =
521  Onher Bevecable Commmtmeonts

VI DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
.l Dermvative Financial Instraments Hedd For Hedging
a1 Fam Vabse Hedges

6,12 Cash Flow Hedpes

6.1.3 Hedges of Net Investmont m Fescign Oporalions . B - -
02 Diemwvative Financial Instnaments Held For Tradsag 55,0103 a4z 128,607
6.2.1  Forward Buy or Sell Transactions
6221 Swap PurchssesSakes

©.23  Opoon Parchases of Sales

624 Fatures purchascssales

55,195 TIAIT 124,607

35,195 73412 128,607

hls Oihers = = - - - -
VL ITEMS HELD IN CUSTODY 15,700,236 6245263 J1065400  4T0RS6E 1705846 13009806
TOTAL OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS GOJELIAG6 117,065,262 177,227,580 17060947 E6128.167 103,190,114

The accompanying notes sel oul on pages 10 10 58 from an integral part of these financial statements,
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VAKIF FINANSAL KiRALAMA AS.

DECEMBER 31, 2022 FOR THE YEAR OF
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lim (“TL") unless otherwise indicated)

Current Period
1 - 11-%-
STATEMENT OF PROFIT O LOSS Naie 31 Devember M Dhecember 2021
L OPERATING INCOME 1107488 MRS
FACTORING INCOME . .
11 Factoring lnteres! lacome -
LIl Disoounied .
::‘;J Factoring Fea and Commission ncome .
121 Discounted -
123 Oiher .
INCOAE FROM FINANCING LOANS .
[ &3 Bterest Income From Fmancing Loans -
14 Fee and Commission Income From Financing Loans. - -
LEASE INCOME 1107488 MESMG
14 Faance Lease Incons: 1062374 360,524
14 Oiperahonal Tease Incoms - =
[ el Fee and Commasvion Income From Lease Operatons 24,10 022
SAVING FINANCE INCOME . -
1% Dividends Recerved from Savings Fimancing Recevables -
L& Fors and Commmuaoms Roceived Bom Savings Finascing Activilics - =
1L FINANCE COST () {ER AL 20, 984}
1 Dhvadetuds Grven from the Savings Fund Poal . -
23 Iievest Expenses o Pands Bomowed (TS [ EERE T
23 Imerest Expenses on Factoring Payables . -
4 Lease Interest Expenses 215 [Fdd]
24 Imerest Expenses on Securities lssued - (5941}
16 Chher Tnderesd Expaonse = -
27 Feos and omvmrmsim Paul 48,200 (12.862)
i GROSS PROFIT (LOSS) (1+11) T ARE 166,562
w. PERATING EXPENSES i) 1% B, 1% {37,861)
41 Personnel Expemnes fiphe ] (21,983}
42 Provision Exp fior Emnplony Termmmation Bemefits {1,808 (TEX)
43 R i and develop o . -
:.; General Operatime Expenses (ML {1509T)
V. FROFIT (LOSK) (T4 11380 129,104
V1. FTHER OFERATING INCOME h ATHANT 101615
6l Interest Income on Banks 133416 loA28
[ Imepest Income on Marketable Securines Porfolio - =
63 250 50
(] ‘Gains Anising from Capitsl Markets Trnsactions - .
65 Doy Finameial Ti ions’ Clama (1] 1437
L1 Foveign Exchange Cains FY R T L6508
6T Onther FE X197
VIL FROVISION EXPENSES & fr {43,358)
1 Speetfic Provisions EIFT) (26,462)
k] Allowances For Credit Losses . .
E ‘Genersl Loas Loss Az (18]
VL OTHER OFERATING EXPENSES () e E8A20 (2LITE)
&1 Bmpairment in Valug of Socuritios 28T
B2 Binpairment i Value of Nos-Cumest Asscts
:i Loes Arising from Dermvati (21,778
Arising F i [l TR
LE] Forexgn Exchasge Losses
1] (156 (49}
IX. NET OFPERATING FROFIT (LOSS) (V+...+VII LI 165,059
X AMOUNT IN EXCESS RECORDED AS GAIN AFTER - .
XL FROFIT FROM COMPANIES ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY METHOD
XL NET MONETARY POSITION GAIN (LOSS) - -
AL PROFIT (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OFERATIONS, BEFORE TAX (IN+X+X1+X1I) LI 165 885
XV, TAX PROVISION FOR CONTINUING OPERATHONS {#/-) L] (1782445 {37,008
14 Cusmes Tax Prevnidon AN (33.433)
143 Expense Bffect of Deformed Tax (TH (3.585)
143 Bcoine Effecr of Delamed Tax
XV NET PERIOD PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OFERATIONS (XIIEXIV) LR 128871
VL INCOME ON DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
161 Income on Asseis Hleld for Sale
162 Gainon Sale of Associvies, Subasdiaries snd Jointdy Controlled Lnfities {foint ¥'entwes]
163 ey Tnccsme m Thacamtimmed L
XVIL  EXPENSES ON MESCONTINUED OPERATIONS i)
171 Expense on Assets Held S Sale
172 Lows om Sabe of Associntes, mumwmmvmm - .
173 Onher Ex o . -
XVIIL rmmmmmmmrnmﬂm - .
XX, TAX PROVISION FOR DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS {+.)
151 Current Tax Provision
152 Expense Lffect of Defemed Tax - =
193 Encome Effect of Dieforred Tax . -
XN NET PERICKD PROFTTLOSS FROM MECONTINUED OFERATIONS (XVITTEXIX) - -
XXL  NET PROFIT 04t LOSS FOR THE PERIOI (XV+XX) LR R 128871
Barnings {Lows) Per Share L] LR

The accompanying notes set out on pages 10 to 5% from an integral part of these financial statements.
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ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2022

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD

2 O 2 2 AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

VAKIF FINANSAL KiRALAMA AS.

DECEMBER 31, 2022 FOR THE YEAR OF

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated)

FROFITLOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT Current Period Prior Period

I Janmary - 1 Jamuary -

Mate A1 December 2023 31 December 2021

L CURRENT PERICH} FPROFIT/LOSS 18,565 118,071

1. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 71T 48

L1 Items that may nod be Reclavsified subsequently to Profit or Loss TI&TS 4%
11 Tangible Assels Revalustion [noreases Dedreases 6, 003

212 Imtangible Asseis Revaluation Increases Decreases = =

213 Employes Benefits Re-Measuning Loss Incomse 1] (4.014) (210

214 Other Comprchensive Income thas will not be Reclassifbed to Prodi or Loss 18,067 LI

215 Taxes related with Comprehensive Income that wall mot be

Reclasaafied 1o Prafi o Lo (8.381) 142
52 Items that may be Beclassified subsequently 1o Profii er Loss - =
2.2.1 Foreign Exchange Dillerences [or Foreign Currency Transactions
222 Finsmeiad Assets for Wisich the Fasr Vabae Difference i Recognised
Through Other Comprebensive Income Valuation and 'or Classification
Imcome Expenscs ol Fimancal Asscls
223 Cash Flow Hedge IncomeT.osses
224 Imvestment Rxsk Hedge Income Expenses Related to the Crverseas Company
2,24 imher Comprehessive Incomse that may be Beclassified subsequesly to Profit or Loss
226 Taxes related with Comprehensive Income that may be Reclassified

subsogucntly to Profit or Loss
Il TOTAL COMPREEHENSIVE INCOME (1+11) 500,241 IZH,11%

The accompanying noles sel oul on pages 10 10 58 from an integral part of these financial statements,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD
AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A5,

DECEMBER 31, 2022 FOR THE YEAR OF
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated)

Curren! Perind Prior Period
1 = 1 -
Mobe 31 December DIZ2 3 December 2021
A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
11 Ohperating Prafit before Changes in Operating Assets and Lisbilitbes 120281 (19,120
LD Interests Received! Leasing Income G BB 336,340
112 Interest PaidLeasing Expense {657,156} {180,010
113 Dwidend Received 1% 250 80
114  Fees and Commasseons Recerved 250126 BARD
LIS Oubwer Revenne Gained 100455 9T
L& thmﬁml’nwwwﬂﬁ] Receivahles 3 9478 TA1E
LLT 10 P (521400 (23,118)
1L1% 'I‘uuhd (102137} (2.874)
LI 69,756} (249 542)
1.2 Changes In Operating Assets and Lishilities 1491518 08,199
121 Met (Incrense) Ddecrease in Factoning Receivables -
121 Met (Increase) Decrease in Finance Loans B -
1201 Met (Increase) Thecrease in Lease Receivahles (3.231.258) (16621
122 et (Increase) Thecrease in Other Assets (1395 503) (228, 508)
123 Met Increase{Decreasc) in Factanng Pavables - -
123 Met Increase/(Decresse) in Lease Paywhles 363 424
1.24  Net Increase’{Decreasc) m Funds Borrowed S.5T42E3 20197
125 Met Inerease {Docresse) in Liabalines Due - -
1.26  Nel Increase'{Decrease) m Ciber Liabalities 543233 21337
L MNet Cash Provided from Uperating Activities L7150 286,179
B CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
21 Aciussilzon «‘lwmm;, Aspacritey HM -
2.2 Dsposal of I .
23 Purchases of Property and Equipment 15 (67.226) (&,314)
24 Desposals of Property and Equipment 1338
2.5 Purckase of fimancial assets at fur valse through other comprehensive mcome (20.347)
6 Sale of fnascial assets an fais value through other comprehemsive income -
27 Purckase of fimancial assets ot amontized cost -
8 Sale of fmanczal avscts at amortzed cost -
2.9 Oter -
I Met Cash (Used in)Provided frem Investing Activities (®6.215) (6,035)
o, CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Al Cash Obtamed from Funds Borrowed and Securities Fsued - -
2 Cash Used for Repayenest of Funds Bosrowed and Securities sued - (1615
13 Isvaed Capital Instruments. - .
a4 Dwvidends Paid - -
L] Pavmenis for Fisance Leases (B56) (318)
16 (bt I8 3005 ZIREIS
. Met Cash Provided from Financimg Activities 3781 166,581
IV,  EMect of Change in Forcign Exchange Rate on Caih and Cash Equivalents 3o 00 213,369
¥.  Net Increase/{Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,691,164 60,325
VI Cash and Cash Equivalents a1 Beginning of the Period 1.3 TTROEY 118687
VI Cash and Cash Equivalents ot Emd of e Perbsd 2.3 2,740,246 T79,0u2

The accompanying notes set out on pages 10 to 58 from an integral part of these financial statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD

2027

VAKIF FINANSAL KiRALAMA AS.

DECEMBER 31, 2022 FOR THE YEAR OF

STATEMENT OF PROFIT DISTRIBUTION FOR THE PERIOD
(Amounts expressed i thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") wnless otherwise indicated)

AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Awdited Audited
Current perbod Prior peried
M December 2022(%) 31 December 2021
L DISTRIBUTION OF CURRENT PERIOD PROFIT (%)
L1 CURRENT FERIOD PROFIT 91,810 165080
1.2 TAXES AND DUES PAYARLE (=) (173 24d) {37,018}
1.21  Corporate Tax {Inconse Tax) (97 436) {33,433)
123 Withalding Tax - -
123 Other taxes and dues (75.308) {3,585)
A NET PERIOD PROFIT (1.1 - 1.2) 18, 5 128,071
1.3 FRIOR YEARS LOSSES {-) -
1.4 FIRST LEGAL RESERVE (-) 6,403}
1.5 OTHER STATUTORY RESERVES NEEDED TO BE KEPT IN THE COMPANY (-} .
H. MSETRIBUTARLE NET PERICHY FROFUT [(A-1 5 1L451L5)] (*=) E1H, 566 120,668
L& FIRST DIVIDEND TO SHAREHOLDERS (-]
L&l ToOwners of Ordimary Shares
1632 T (vwmers al Prelermed Sscks -
(N To Oomers of Prelerred Stocks (Pre-emplive Rights)
164 To Profit Sharing Bonds
164 T Crvmers ol the pralm Goss Sharing Cemificaics -
1.7 IMVIDEKD TO PERSONNEL (-)
1.8 DIVIDERD TO BOARD OF THRECTORS (<)
1% SECOND DMVIDEND TO SHAREHOLDERS (<) -
L1 T Dravmers al Osdenasy Shares
122 To Owners af Prelemed Stocks
1.3 To Owners of Preferred Stocks (Pre-emptive Rights) -
1.4 Tix Profn Shanng Boods
125 To Oromers of the pralil Joss Shanng Cerificaties .
110 STATUS RESERVES (<) -
1. EXTRAORINMNARY RESERVES 201,608}
1.1z OTHER RESERVES .
113 SPECIAL FUNDS .

PR R B b R R b
b b B3 B b B B e
W e e b

DISTRIBUTION FROM RESERVES

DISTRIBUTED RESERVES

SHARE TO SHAREHOLDERS (-)

To Oromers of Ordmary Shares

To Oovmers of Prefemed Siocks

To Ormers af Prefermed Stacks (Pre-enaptive Rights)
Te Profit Sharing Bonds

To Ommers of the profit Joss Sharing Centificates
SHARE TO PERSONNEL (-}

SHARE TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS (-}

m EARNINGS PER SHARE

LN TO OWNERS OF STOCKS

3z TO OWNERS OF STOCKS (%)

i3 TO OWNERS OF PREFERRED STOCKS

34 TO OWNERS OF PREFERRED STOCKS (=)

v, DIVIDEXD FER SHARE

4.1 TO OWNERS OF STOCKS

42 TO OWNERS OF STOCKS (%)

43 TO OWNERS OF PEEFERRED STOCKS

4.4 T OWNERS OF PREFERRED STOCKS (%) = -
*) The Company’s General Assembly has not been held yet and in the profit distibution table only distributable profits has been

specified,

") It has been conadered by the Banking Regulation amd Supervision Agency that the meome amounts related 1o defermed 1ax assels

canmot be qualified as cash or infernal resources, and therefore the part of the period profit ansing from these asscts should ot be
subject to prodit distribution and capatal increase, As of 31 December 2021, the Company has no deferred tax income ansng (rom
deferred tax assets (31 December 2000; no deferred tax income arising from deferred tax assets).

The accompanying notes set out on pages 10 to 5% from an integral part of these financial statements.
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[/ ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2022
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD
AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

VAKIF FINANSAL KiRALAMA AS.

DECEMBER 31, 2022 FOR THE YEAR OF
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL"™) unless otherwise indicated)

1- ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY

Brief history

Vakaf Finansal Kiralama Anonim Sirketi (“the Company™) was established on 15 September 1988 and
operates in accordance with “Finance Lease, Factoring and Financing Companies Law™ published on
the Official Gazette no, 28496 dated 13 December 2012 and “Regulation on Principles for Establishment
and Operations of Finance Lease, Factoring and Financing Companies” of Banking Regulation and
Supervision Agency (“BRSA™).

The Company is a subsidiary of Tirkive Vakiflar Bankas: Tiirk Anonim Ortakhif (“Vakifbank™) and
the 37.95% of the outstanding shares of the Company are publicly traded at Istanbul Stock Exchange
(“ISE™). The Company has no preferred stock.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company has 76 employces. (31 December 2021: 76).

The registered address of the Company is as follows:

Biiyiikdere Caddesi Matbuat Sokak
Gazeteciler Sitesi Not13

34394 Esentepe - Sigh

Istanbul/ Turkey

Ownership Structure

The ultimate sharcholder having direct or indirect control over the shares of the Company is Vakifbank.
As of 31 December 2022, and 2021, the share capital and ownership structure of the Company are as

follows:
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Share Amount  Share Percentage Share Amount  Share Percentage
Sharcholder (TL) (%a) (TL) (%)
Vakifbank 372,274 62,05 293 562 62.61
Tiirkiye Sigorta Anonim Sirketi © - - 78,244 16.69
Public Shares ™ 227,726 3295 97,089 20.70
Paid-in capital (***) 600,000 100 468,895 100

g The: ratio ks caloalated froen the shases of the Company registered at kitnnbul Takas ve Saklens Baskass A 5. (" Takashank ™)

L O 4 August T022, Tudkive Sapota AF. sold 20,000,000 bots 10 Turkive Vakiflar Bankas TAD. at a prwce of TL 245 rogasdimyg the shares of Vakal®
Finansal Kiralama A% (VAKFN) with the special cader; and sold 5,500,000 kots 1o various mvestors at a price of TL. 247 with a market order. A total
of 255 mulbion VAKFN shages were sold al an average price of TL 245, As a pesult of the sale tramsactions, Turkive Sigorta A%'s shares m the capital
of Valaf Fisansal Kinlima A% decreased to 8.2%%, while the shares of T Valoflar Bankra TAC increased 1o 62.08% Torkive Sigorin A% sold it
remaining shares om Oclober 21, 2022, 5 000.000 shares al an average price of TL 39552 per share and on December 15, 2022, | 730,936 shares ata
price of TL 5 14 per share, As a sesubl of the sale mansactions, Torkive Sigots A% docss’t have any shase is the capital of Valaf Fimansal Kiralams A%

50 7 Ocsaber 2021, the Board of Dhaectors decided ta increase its paid-an cagital by 100%, and as of 31 Deeember 2021, 715595 TL of the increased
amesm| has been collected. and the remaining portion will be collecied in 7022, The registrabion process regarding the capilal merease was completed
as of 31 January 2022
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ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2022

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD

2 O 2 2 AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

VAKIF FINANSAL KiRALAMA AS.

DECEMBER 31, 2022 FOR THE YEAR OF
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts expressed i thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwase indicated)

2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.1 Basis Of Presentation
2.1.1 Accounting standards

The Company prepared accompanying financial statements in accordance with to the “Regulation on
Accounting Practices and Financial Statements of Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing
Companies™ and the “Communiqué on Uniform Chart of Accounts and Prospectus to be implemented
by Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies and on Financial Statements to be announced
to Public” published in the Official Gazette dated 29 June 2021 and numbered 31526 and Turkish
Financial Reporting Standards published by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards
Institute (POAAS), (“TFRS") and other regulations, communiqués, and circulars announced by the
Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency (“BRSA”) (all together “BRSA Accounting and Financial
Reporting Standards™) in respect of accounting and finaneial reporting.

The financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2021 are approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company and authorized for issue as at 9 February 2022, The General Assembly and
or legal authorities have the discretion of making changes in the accompanying financial statements
after their issuance,

The accompanying financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis as adjusted for the
effects of inflation that lasted until 31 December 2004, except for the financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income and assets held for sale which are measured at their fair values
unless reliable measures are available,

The COVID-19 epidemic, which has emerged in China, has spread to various countries around the
world, causing potentially fatal respiratory infections, affects both regional and global economic
conditions negatively, as well as causing malfunctions in operations, especially in countries exposed 1o
the epidemic. As a result of the spread of COVID-19 around the world, various measures have been
taken in our country as well as in the world in order to prevent the transmission of the virus and it is still
being taken, In addition to these measures, economic measures are also taken to minimize the economic
impact of the virus outbreak on individuals and businesses in our country and worldwide. While
preparing the financial statements as of December 31, 2021, the Company reflected the possible effects
of the COVID-19 outbreak on the estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the financial
statemenis,

Based on the BRSA's decisions numbered 8948 dated March 17, 20200 and numbered 8970 dated March
27, 2020, the upper limit of the number of delay days in the transfer to non-performing receivables due
to Covid-19 has been increased from 150 days to 240 days. However, with the BRSA's decision dated
September 16, 2021 and numbered 9795, this application has ended.

TAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflation Economies requires entities whose functional currency
is that of a hyperinflationary economy to prepare their financial statements in terms of the measuring
unit current at the end of the reporting period. TAS 29 describes charactenistics that may indicate that
an cconomy is hyperinflationary, and it requires all entities that report in the currency of the same
hyperinflationary cconomy apply this Standard from the same date. Therefore, it is expected that TAS
29 will start to be applied simultancously by all entities with the announcement of Public Oversight
Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority to ensure consistency of the application required by TAS
29 throughout the country. However, the Authornity has not published any announcement that determines
entities would restate their financial statements for the accounting period ending on 31 December 2022
in accordance with TAS 29, In this context, TMS 29 is not applicd and inflation adjustment has not been
reflected in the financial statements as of December 31, 2022,



VAKIF FINANSAL KiRALAMA AS.

DECEMBER 31, 2022 FOR THE YEAR OF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts expressed i thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwase indicated)

2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.1  Basis Of Presentation (Continued)
2.1.2 Netting/OfTset

Financial assets and liabilities are shown net in cases where there is the necessary legal right, there is an
intention to evaluate the said assets and liabilitics clearly, or when the acquisition of assets and the
fulfilment of liabilities are consccutive.

2.1.3 Going concern
The Company prepared its financial statements considering the going concern pringipal.
2.1.4 Currency used

Financial statcments of the Company have been presented using the currency (functional currency) of
the economic environment in which the Company operates. The financial position and the results of
operations of the Company have been presented in the Turkish Lira (“TL").

2.1.5 Critical Accounting evaluations, estimates and assumptions

Preparation of these financial statements requires estimates and judgments regarding the reported
amount of assets and liabilities or contingent assets and liabilities and reported amount of income and
expenses of the related period. Such estimates and judgementis are based on the Company’s best
estimates regarding current events and transactions; however, the actual results may differ from these
cslimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised and in any future yvears affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in
applving accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements are described in the following note:

Allowances for impairment of lease receivables

The provision for total financial leasing receivables, which is determined by valuing the financial leasing
receivables, is determined in a way that includes the doubtful receivables in the Company’s financial
leasing receivables portfolio, The Company has set this provision accordance with BESA Communigué
on Procedures Regarding Provisions 1o be provided for Loans of Leasing, Factoring and Consumer
Finance Companies (“Provisions Communiqué™) published in Official Gazette No. 28861, dated 24
December 2013,

The total provision for leasing receivables determined as a result of the evaluation of financial leasing
receivables is determined to include doubtful receivables in the Company's leasing receivables portfolio.
The Company reserves the relevant provision in accordance with Article & of the “Regulation on
Accounting Practices and Financial Statements of Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing
Companies™ published in the Official Gazette dated 24 December 2013 and numbered 28861 by the
BRSA. According to the relevant communiqué, at least 20% of the financial leasing receivables whose
collection is delayed between 151-240 days from the due date, after taking into account the guarantecs,
and at least 50% afier taking into account the collaterals of the financial leasing receivables whose
collection 15 delayed between 240 and 365 days from the due date. and 100%: specific provision is sct
after taking into account the guarantees of financial leasing receivables whose collection is overdue for
more than 365 days.



VAKIFLEASING
ANNUAL REPORT / 2022 ¢ 68

ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2022

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD

2 O 2 2 AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

VAKIF FINANSAL KiRALAMA AS.

DECEMBER 31, 2022 FOR THE YEAR OF
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts expressed i thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwase indicated)

2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.1 Basis of Presentation {Continued)

In the provisions communiqué, it is stated that companies can set aside provisions in general and without
being directly related to any transaction, in order to compensate for losses expected to arise from
receivables that do not delay the collection of principal, interest or both or have not exceeded the
aforementioned periods, but whose amount is not certain, but it is not considered as a requirement. The
company allocates a general provision for its financial lease receivables that do not become doubtful.
After the collection of receivables for which provision has been set aside, the provision amounts arc
reversed, and all of the related receivables are deducted from assets, During the collection of a receivable
related to a Prior year's provisions, the related collection amount is credited to “Other Operating
Income™ account as income,

Recognition of deferred tax asset

Deferred tax asscts can be recorded as much as the said tax benefit is probable. Amount of taxable profits
and possible tax benefits in the future 1s based on medium term business plan and expectations prepared
by the company. The business plan is based on rational expectations of the company under current
circumstances,

Fair value measurements of the share certificates

Fair value measurcments of the share certificates are valued for determination of fair value by
independent valuation instutions onee a year.

22  Changes in Accounting Policies
2.2.1 Comparatives and restatement of prior vear financial statements

The Company has presented its balance sheet prepared as of December 31, 2022 in comparison with its
balance sheet prepared as of December 31, 2021, The Company has presented its profit or loss statement,
profit or loss and other comprehensive statement of income, statement of change in equity and statement
of cash flows for the accounting period from January | to December 31, 2022 in comparison with the
accounting period from January 1 to December 31, 2021,

2.2.2 Changes in accounting policies

Changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively and the prior period’s financial statements
are restated accordingly. There is no major change in the accounting policies of the Company in the
current year.

2.2.3 Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The effect of a change in an accounting estimate is recognised prospectively in the period of the change,
if the change affects that period only; or the period of the change and future periods, if the change affects
both. There has not been any significant change in the accounting estimates of the Company in the
current yvear, Material prior year errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative
amounts for the prior periods.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

The new standards, amendmenis and interpretations

The accounting policies adopted in preparation of the finaneial statements as at December 31, 2022 are
consistent with those of the previous financial yvear, except for the adoption of new and amended TFRS
and TFRS interpretations effective as of January 1, 2022 and thereafier. The effects of these standards
and interpretations on the Company’s financial position and performance have been disclosed in the
related paragraphs.

i) The new standards, amendments and interpretations which are effective as at January 1,
2022 are as follows:

Amendments to TFRS 3 - Reference to the Conceptual Framework

In July 2020, POA issued amendments to TFRS 3 Business combinations. The amendments are intended
to replace 1o a reference to a previous version of the Conceptual Framework (the 1989 Framework) with
a reference to the current version issued in March 2018 (the Conceptual Framework) without
significantly changing requircments of TFRS 3. At the same time, the amendments add a new paragraph
to TFRS 3 1o clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
amendments must be applied prospectively.

The amendments did not have a significant impact on the financial position or performance of the
Company.

Amendments to TAS 16 - Proceeds before intended use

In July 2020, POA issued amendments to TAS 16 Property, plant and equipment. The amendment
prohibits entities from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment (PP&E), any
proceeds of the sale of items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognizes
the proceeds from sclling such items, and costs of producing those items, in profit or loss. The
amendments must be applied retrospectively only to items of PP&E made available for use on or after
beginning of the earliest period presented when the entity first applies the amendment.

The amendments did not have a significant impact on the financial position or performance of the
Company.

Amendments to TAS 37 — Onerous contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

In July 2020, POA issued amendments to TAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilitics and Contingent
assets. The amendments specify which costs an entity needs to include when assessing whether a
contract is onerous or loss-making and also apply a “directly related cost approach”. Amendments must
be applied prospectively to contracts for which an entity has not fulfilled all of its obligations at the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applics the amendments (the date of initial
application).

The amendments did not have a significant impact on the financial position or performance of the
Company.
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2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

Annual Improvements — 2018-2020 Cycle

Inn July 2020, POA issued Annual Improvements to TFRS Standards 2008-2020 Cycle, amending
the followings:

TFRS 1 First-time Adoption af International Financial Reporting Standards — Subsidiary as a first-time
adopter: The amendment permits a subsidiary tto measure cumulative translation differences using the
amounts reported by the parent. The amendment is also applied to an associate or joint venture,

TERS 9 Financial Instrumenis — Fees in the “ 10 per cent test” for derecognition of financial liahilities:
The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or
modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.

TAN 41 Agricultwre - Taxation in fair valne measurements: The amendment removes the requirement in
paragraph 22 of TAS 41 that entitics exclude cash flows for taxation when measuring fair value of asscts
within the scope of TAS 41,

The amendments did not have a significant impact on the financial position or performance of the
Company.

i) Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are issued but not vet effective up
to the date of issuance of the financial statements are as follows. The Company will make the necessary
changes if not indicated otherwise, which will be affecting the financial statements and disclosures, when
the new standards and interpretations become effective.

Amendments to TFRS 10 and TAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

In December 2017, POA postponed the effective date of this amendment indefinitely pending the
outcome of its rescarch project on the equity method of accounting, Early application of the amendments
is still permired.

The Company will wait until the final amendment to assess the impacts of the changes.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)
TFRS 17 - The new Standard for insurance contracts

POA issued TFRS 17 in February 2019, a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance
contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. TFRS 17 model combines
a current balance sheet measurement of insurance contract liabilities with the recognition of profit over
the period that services are provided. TFRS 17 will become cffective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023; early application is permitted.

The standard is not applicable for the Company and will not have an impact on the financial position or
performance of the Company.

Amendments to TAS 1- Classification of Liabilities as Current and Non-Current Liabilities

In January 2021 and January 2023, POA issued amendments to TAS 1 to specify the requirements for
classifying liabilitics as current or non-current. According to the amendments made in January 2023 if
an entity's right to defer scttlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with the required
covenants at a date subsequent to the reporting period (“future covenants™), the entity has a right to defer
scttlement of the liability cven if it docs not comply with those covenants at the end of the reporting
period. In addition, January 2023 amendments require an entity to provide disclosure when a liability
arising from a loan agreement is classified as non-current and the entity’s right to defer settlement is
contingent on compliance with future covenants within twelve months. This disclosure must include
information about the covenanis and the related liabilities. The amendmenis clarified that the
classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting period. The amendments are
effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, The amendments must be applied
retrospectively in accordance with TAS 8. Early application is permitted. However, an entity that applies
the 2020 amendments early is also required to apply the 2023 amendments, and vice versa.

The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendments on financial position or
performance of the Company.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)
Amendments to TAS 8 - Definition of Accounting Estimates

In August 2021, POA issued amendments to TAS 8, in which it introduces a new definition of
‘accounting estimates’. The amendments issued to TAS 8 are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023, The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting
estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. Also, the amended standard
clarifics that the cffects on an accounting estimate of a change in an input or a change in a measurement
technique are changes in accounting estimates if they do not result from the correction of prior period
crrors, The previous definition of a change in accounting estimate specificed that changes in accounting
estimates may result from new information or new developments, Therefore, such changes are not
corrections of errors, This aspect of the definition was retained by the POA, The amendments apply o
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of the
effective date. Earlier application is permitted.

The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendments on financial position or
performance of the Company.

Amendments to TAS 1 - Disclosure of Accounting Policies

In August 2021, POA issued amendments to TAS 1, in which it provides guidance and examples to help
entities apply materiality judgemenis to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments issued 1o TAS
1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, In the absence of a definition of
the term “significant” in TFRS, the POA decided to replace it with *material” in the context of disclosing
accounting policy information. ‘Material” is a defined term in TFRS and is widely understood by the
users of financial statements, according to the POA. In assessing the materiality of accounting policy
information, entities need to consider both the size of the transactions, other events or conditions and
the nature of them, Examples of circumstances in which an entity is likely to consider accounting policy
information to be material have been added. The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of
the amendments on financial position or performance of the Company,

Amendments to TAS 12 - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

In August 2021, POA issued amendments to TAS 12, which narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception under TAS 12, so that it no longer applics to ransactions that give risc to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. The amendments issued to TAS 12 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after | January 2023, The amendments clarify that where payments that settle a liability
are deductible for tax purposes, it 15 a matter of judgement (having considered the applicable tax law)
whether such deductions are attributable for tax purposcs to the lability recognised in the financial
statements (and interest expense) or to the related asset component (and interest expensc). This
Judgement is important in determining whether any temporary differences exist on initial recognition of
the asset and liability. The amendments apply to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the
carlicst comparative period presented. In addition, at the beginning of the carliest comparative period
presented, a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax
liability for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with leases and
decommissioning obligations should be recognized.

The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendments on financial position or
performance of the Company.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

Amendments to TFRS 16 - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

In September 2022, POA issued amendments to TFRS 16. The amendments specify the requirements
that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction, o
ensure the scller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use
it retains, In applying requirements of TFRS 16 under “Subsequent measurement of the lease liability™
heading after the commencement date in a sale and leaseback transaction, the seller lessee determines
‘lease payments” or ‘revised lease payments’ in such a way that the scller-lessce would not recognisc
any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use retained by the seller-lessee. The
amendments do not prescribe specific measurement requirements for lease liabilities arising from a
leaseback. The initial measurement of the lease liability arising from a leaseback may result in a seller-
lessee determining ‘lease payments” that are different from the general definition of lease payments in
TFRS 16. The seller-lessee will need to develop and apply an accounting policy that resulis in
information that is relevant and reliable in accordance with TAS 8,

The amendments are not applicable for the Company and will not have an impact on the financial
position or performance of the Company.

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

Foreign exchange transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the
date of the transactions and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies ranslated
by using year-end exchange rates of Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey’s bid rates. Gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such ransactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Foreign currency exchange rates used on 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 are as follows:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

US Dolar 18,6983 12,9775
Eura 19.9349 14.6823
GBP 22.4892 17.4530
CHF 20.2019 14.1207



VAKIF LEASING
ANNUAL REPORT / 2022 74

ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2022

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD

2 O 2 2 AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A5,

DECEMBER 31, 2022 FOR THE YEAR OF
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira ("TL™)} unless otherwise indicated)

2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, deposits
at banks and highly liquid and insignificant risk of change in the value of the invesiments with mamurity
periods of less than three months.

Financial leasing transactions

“TFRS 16 Leases” Standard determines the principles regarding the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases. The purpose of the standard is to ensure that the tenants and lessors
present these transactions in fair value and provide the information appropriate to the need. This
information constitutes the basis for the evaluation of the effect of leases on the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the financial statement users.

i) As lessor

Assets which are subject to leasing transactions are presented as a receivable which equals to the
investment amount made for the related leasing transactions, Lease income is recognised over the term
of the lease using the net investment method, which reflects a periodic constant rate of return. The
leasing payments reccived are deducted from the gross leasing investments by reducing the principal
and unearned finance income.

fif)  As fessee

In accordance with the *TFRS 16 - Leases” standard, the Company caleulates the “right of use™ amount

based on the present value of the lease payments of the fixed asset subject to lease at the beginning of

the lease and includes it in “tangible fixed assets™. In the calculation of right of use assets, the unpaid

lease payment amounts have been discounted with an alternative borrowing interest rate, taking into

ﬁmu;t the l:cn':laining term in the lease contract with the property owner, and the net present value has
en determined.

The Company has accounted the total of lease obligations to be paid until the end of the lease contract
as “Liabilities from Leasing Transactions™ in the balance sheet liabilitics, instead of direetly expense the
leases subject to TFRS 16 Leases standard or taking them into prepaid expenses, Changes that will affect
the lease obligation are measured again and reflected in the balance sheet accounts.

Based on the lease contract term, interest and depreciation are calculated monthly over the net present
value and accounted in the income statement.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Allowances for impairment of lease receivables

The lease receivables provision for the impairment of investments in direct finance leases is established
based on a credit review of the receivables portfolio. The Company has set this provision in accordance
with BRSA Communiqué on Procedures Regarding Provisions to be provided for Loans of Leasing,
Factoring and Consumer Finance Companies (“Provisions Communiqué™) published in Official Gazetie
MNo. 28861, dated 24 December 2013,

As the details are explained in footnote 2.1.5 on Important Accounting Evaluation Estimates and
Assumptions, even if the delay in collection of receivables has not exceeded the specified periods or
there is no delay in the collection of receivables, companies will use all available data regarding the
creditworthiness of the debtor for their receivables and Turkish Financial Reporting Standards.
Considering the reliability and prudence principles set forth in the Articles of Association, it allows them
to sct aside special provisions at the rates determined, without including the collateral amount in the
caleulation, Except for the rates regulated in the relevant regulation, the Company docs not have any
provisions set aside at the rates determined, without including the collateral amount in the calculation,

With the collection of the receivable, the previously reserved provision is reversed, and the entire
receivable is deducted from the asset. In case of collection of a receivable for which provision was made
in previous periods, the relevant amounts are recorded as income in the “Other Operating Income”
account.

Explanations on the write-off policy:

As a consequence of the tracking process, loans with low/ne collection possibility and non-performing
loans are removed from assets as per a decision from the Board of Directors.

Financial instruments

The Company classifies and recognizes financial assets under “Financial Assets for Which the Fair
Value Difference is Recognized Through Other Comprehensive Income”. The financial assets are
recognized or derecognized in accordance with the “Recognition and Derecognition” principles defined
in Section 3 related to the classification and measurement of financial instruments of the “TFRS 9
Financial Instruments™ standard published in the Official Gazette No. 29953 dated 19 December 2017
by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (POA). At initial recognition,
financial assets are measured at fair value. In the case of financial assets are not measured at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs arc added or deducted to/from their fair value.

The Company recognizes a financial asset in the financial statement when, and only when, the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. When the Company first recognizes a
financial asset, the business model and the charactenstics of contractual cash flows of the financial asset
are considercd by management.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i)  Financial Assets for Which the Fair Value Difference is Recognized Through Other
Comprehensive Income

Financial assets for which the fair value difference is recognised through other comprehensive income
investment securities are carried at fair value based on quoted bid prices, or amounts derived from cash
flow models on the financial statements as of the balance sheet date.

The Company has security investments for which they do not have controlling power or significant
activity and which represent a share of capital. Securities representing the share of capital are recognised
at fair value if they are traded in organised markets and/or their fair value is determined in a reliable
manner. If they are not traded in organised markets and their fair value is not determined in a reliable
manner, they are reflected on financial statements at cost after the depreciation provision is deducted.

When recognising them in financial statements for the first time, the Company may choose to present
future changes in the fair value of investments in an equity instrument which is not held for commercial
purposcs under other comprehensive income. In this case, dividends camned from the said investment
are transferred to financial statements as profit or loss,

Property and equipment

In the accompanying financial statements, tangible asscts acquired before 1 January 2005 are measured
at cost restated for the effects of inflation at 31 December 2004 less accumulated depreciation. Tangible
assets acquired after 1 January 2005 are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation,

The Company decided to pursue the properties for use according to their fair values by separating the
land and buildings within the context of TAS 16 “Turkish Accounting Standard on Property, Plant and
Equipment”. As a result of the valuation performed by an independent appraisal company, revaluation
difference of TL 76,531 (31 December 2021: TL 18,779) afier deferred tax effect is accounted under
the accumulated other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss.

As of 31 December, 2022, the conformity between net book value that was calculated based on the cost
of properties for use and revaluated values are as follows:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Fair Value 24,055 24,055
Met book value calculated on cost value 62813 3,190
Before tax revaluation differences 86,868 20,865
Calculated deferred tax liability (-) (10,337) (2,086)
Revaluation differences, net 76,531 18,779

Gains/losses arising from the disposal of the tangible assets are caleulated as the difference between the
net carrying value and the proceeds from the disposal of related tangible assets and reflected 1o the
statement of income of the related period.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property and equipment (Continued)

Maintenance and repair costs incurred in the ordinary course of the business are recorded as expense.
There are no pledges, mortgages and other encumbrances on tangible assets. Tangible assets are

depreciated over the estimated uscful lives of the related assets from the date of acquisition or the date
of installation, on a straight-line basis over the cost. Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at

each reporting date.
The estimated uscful lives of tangible assets are as follows:

Expected Depreciation
Tangible assets Useful Life (Year) Rate (%)
Buildings 50 2
Furnitures and fixed assets 5 20
Mortor vehicles 5 20
Other non-current assets - special costs 5 20

Intangible assets
The Company’s intangible assets consist of software.

The cost of the intangible assets purchased before | January 20035 are restated from the purchasing dates
10 31 December 2004, the date the hyperinflationary period is considered to be ended. The intangible
assets purchased afier this date are recorded at their historical costs.

The Company allocates the depreciation of the intangible assets based on their inflation adjusted prices
based on the useful lives of the assets, using the straight-line method.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Assets held for resale

The assets providing the necessary conditions of being classified as the asscts held for resale are recognized
with the lower of their book value and fair value less cost of sales. These assets are presented separately
on the balance sheet and are not subjected to depreciation following the classification. To classify an asset
as asset held for resale, the sale potential of the asset (or the asset Company to be disposed) should be high
and the asset should be available to immediately sell under ordinary circumstances in sale of this kind of
assets, To have high sale potential, there should be a proper scheme for sale of the asset (or asset company
to be disposed) which is prepared by a proper administrative level and an active sales program should be
launched to complement the scheme and determine the buyers. Furthermore, the asset should be marketed
actively with a price coherent to its fair value. Various incidents and conditions may extend the completion
of the sale term to more than a year, The asset is remained to be classificd as the asset held for resale, if
the reason of the delay is the incidents and conditions out of the control of the Company, and there is no
sufficient evidence that the Company is continuing its sales program of the asset.

The impairment losses and profit and loss from subsequent valuation of the assets classified as the asscts
held for resale are recognized on income statement,

Mon-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are firmed together into the smallest company of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other
assets or company of assets (the “cash -generating unit™).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds
its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of income,
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Employee benefits

In accordance with existing Turkish Labour Law, the Company is required to make lump-sum
termination indemnities to each employee who has completed one year of service with the Company
and whose employment is terminated due to retirement or for reasons other than resignation or
misconduct. The computation of the liability is based upon the retirement pay ceiling announced by the
Government, The applicable ceiling amount as of 31 December 2022 is full TL 1537140
{31 December 2021; full TL 10,596.74). The Company provided reserve for employee severance
indemnities in the accompanying financial statements using actuarial method in compliance with the
TAS 19.

As of 31 December 2022, and 2021, the actuarial assumptions are as follows:
31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Discount rate Y03.00 3.00%
Expected rate of salary/ceiling increase Yol8.45 18.45%

Expected rate of salary/ceiling increase is determined based on inflation estimates of the government.
The principal assumption is that the maximum liability for each year of serviee will increase in line with
inflation, Thus, the discount rate applied represents the expected real rate after adjusting for the
anticipated cffects of future inflation.

The Company has provided reserve for short-term emplovee benefits in the financial period as per
services rendered in compliance with TAS 19 - Emplovee Benefits in the accompanying financial
statements.

Authority with the Communiqué published in Official Gazette on 12 March 2013 numbered 28585, in
the calculation of the employment termination benefit liabilities of the Company, the recognition method
of the actuarial gains and losses derived from the changes in actuarial assumptions or the differences
between actuarial assumptions and realizations in the income statement has been eliminated which is
effective for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, Beginning of 1 January 2013, the
Company has recognised the actuarial gains and losses that occur in related reporting periods in the
“Statement of Comprehensive Income™ and presented in the “Extraordinary reserves” item in the Equity
section of the financial statements.

Provisions, contingent assets and liabilities

In the financial statements, a provision is made for an existing liability resulted from past events if it is
probable that the liability will be scttled, and a reliable estimate can be made for the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are calculated based on the best estimates of management on the expenses to incur
as at the balance sheet date and, if material, such expenses are discounted to their present values. If the
amount is not reliably estimated and there is no probability of cash outflow from the Company to settle
the liability, the related liability is considered as “contingent™ and disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Provisions, contingent assets and liabilities (Continued)

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity. Contingent assets are not recognized in financial statements. Contingent assets are
assessed continuously to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial
statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will anse, the asset and
the related income are recognized in the financial statements of the period in which the change occurs.
If an inflow of economic benefits has become probable, the Company discloses the contingent asset in
the accompanying financial statements.

Income and expense recognition

Finance lease income

The values of the asscts leased within the context of Financial Lease Law are shown as finance lease
receivables on balance sheet at their value determined at the beginning of the leasing transaction, The
interest income generated by the difference between total finance lease receivable and the investment
value of the assct subject to leasing is recorded to the income statement of the period by means of
distribution of the receivables with fixed interest rate to the related periods. The interest income not
accrued in relevant period is followed under uncamed interest income,

Interest income and expenses

Interest income and expense are recognized according to the effective interest method based on acerual
basis. Effective interest rate is the rate that discounts the expected cash flows of financial assets or
liabilities during their lifetimes to their carrying values. Effective interest rate is caleulated when a
financial asset or a liability is initially recorded and is not modified thereafier,

The computation of effective interest rate comprises discounts and premiums, fees and commissions
paid or received and transaction costs, which are indispensable parts of effective interest. Transaction
costs are additional costs that are directly related to the acquisition or disposal of financial assets or
liabilities.

Fees and commissions

The fees and commissions reecived from and paid due to finance lease operations are recognized in the
statement of income when the related serviee is rendered or received.

Dividend
Dividend income is recognized when the Company”s night to receive payment 1s ascertained.
Other income and expenses

Other income and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation
Corporaie laxes

Taxable income is subject to corporate tax at 25%. This rate is applied to net income modified for certain
exemptions {like dividend income) and deductions (like investment incentives), and additions for certain
non-tax-deductible expenses and allowances for tax purposes. If there is no dividend distribution
planned, no further tax charges are made.

Withholding tax rate on dividend payments, which are made to the companies except those are domiciled
in Turkey or generate income in Turkey via a business or a regular agent, is 15%. In applying the
withholding tax rates on dividend payments to the non-resident institutions and the individuals, the
withholding tax rates covered in the related Double Tax Treaty Agreements are taken into account.
Appropriation of the retained earnings to capital is not considered as profit distribution and therefore is
not subject to withholding tax.

The prepaid taxes are calculated and paid at the rates valid for the camings of the related vears. The
payments can be deducted from the annual corporate tax calculated for the whole year earnings. Under
the Turkish taxation system, tax losses can be carried forward up to five years, As of 31 December 2022,
the Company has no deductible tax losses (31 December 2021: None).

In Turkey, there is no procedure for a final and definitive agreement on tax assessments. Companies file
their tax returns until the end of the 25th day of the 4th month following the close of the accounting year
to which they relate. Tax returns are open for five years from the beginning of the yvear that follows the
date of filing during which time the tax authorities have the right to audit tax returns, and the related
accounting records on which they are based and may issue re-assessments based on their findings.

With the “Law Amending the Tax Procedure Law and the Corporate Tax Law™, which was accepied on
the agenda of the Turkish Grand National Assembly on January 20, 2022, the application of inflation
accounting was postponed starting from the balance sheet dated on December 31, 2023,

Digferred taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized, in accordance with TAS 12- fncome Taxes, on all
1axable iemporary differences arising between the carrving values of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their corresponding balances considered in the caleulation of the tax base, except for the
differences not deductible for tax purposes and initial recognition of assets and liabilitics which affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit,

According to the tax legislation, as long as it is deemed possible to obtain a financial profit that can be

deducted in the following periods, it calculates deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences
excluding general provisions and deferred tax liability on all taxable temporary differences.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Dieferred taxes (Continned)

In the financial statements dated 31 December 2022, deferred tax assets and liabilities are caleulated
with 25% rates for the parts of temporary differences that will have tax effects in 2022 and the following
periods. { December 31, 2021: 23% for transactions with a maturity of 2022, 20%: for transactions after
2022,

The deferred tax asscts and liabilitics are reported as net in the financial statements only if the Company
has legal right to present the net value of current year tax assets and current year tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are income taxes of the same taxable entiry.

Transfer pricing

In Turkey, the transfer pricing provisions have been stated under the Article 13 of Corporate Tax Law
with the heading of “disguised profit distribution via transfer pricing”. The General Communiqué on
disguised profit distribution via Transfer Pricing, dated 18 MNovember 2007 sets details about
implementation.

According to the Communiqué, if a taxpayer enters into transactions regarding sale or purchase of goods
and services with related parties, where the prices are not set in accordance with arm’s length principle,
then related profits are considered to be distributed in a disguised manner through transfer pricing. Such
disguised profit distributions through transfer pricing are not accepted as tax deductible for corporate
INCOme tax purposcs,

Investment incentive

As per the provisional 69th article which is added to the 193 numbered Income Tax Law by 5479
numbered Law that is published on 8 April 2006 dated and 26133 numbered Official Gazette and became
effective since | January 2006, taxpayers could deduct investment incentives calculated according to
the legislation provisions (including tax rate related provisions) in foree as of 31 December 2005, only
from the taxable income of the years 2006, 2007, and 2008, In this context, income and corporate
taxpayers could deduct the following items only from the taxable income of 2006, 2007, and 2008,

. The carried forward investment incentive exemptions, which could not be dedueted from 20035
revenue and available as at 31 December 2005,

. For the investments, which made in the scope of investment incentive certificates drawn upon
taxpayer's application before 24 April 2003 and started within the frame of 193 numbered Income
Tax Law’s additional 1, 2,345 and 6th articles - later repealed by 4842 numbered law- the
amounts that realized in the scope of certificate after the date | January 2006,

. Within the frame of Article 19 of 193 numbered Law which repealed 5479 numbered Law,
investment expenditures incurred after | January 2006 will be deductible only from the profits of
years 2006, 2007 and 2008 provided that they are economically, and technically integral parts of
the investment started before | January 2006,
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation {Continued)
Invesimeni incentive (Continned)

In this frame the rights of taxpayers who could not deduct investment incentives fully or partially due
o insufficient taxable income during those years, are abrogated as at 31 December 2008, According to
this regulation limiting the right to deduct the investment expenditure from taxable profit, invesiment
incentive exemption will be applied to the taxable profit of 2008 art the latest. Investment incentive
exemption amount which could not be deducted due to lack of taxable profit till the end of 2009 is not
possible to be deducted from the taxable profit of 2009 and subsequent years. Meanwhile, this exemption
amount cannot be recorded as expense in the tax books,

In accordance with the decision taken by the Turkish Constitutional Court on 15 October 2009, “2006,
2007 and 2008” clause of the provisional Article no. 69 of Income Tax Law mentioned above, is repealed
and time limitation for the use of investment incentive is removed. The repeal related to investment
incentive is enacted and issued in the 8 January 2010 dated and 27456 numbered Official Gazette,

Accordingly, investment incentive amounts carried forward to 2006 due to lack of taxable profit and the
other investment incentive amounts which arising from investments prior to 2006 and on goes after this
date in the context of economic and technical integrity can be applied for not only 2006, 2007 and 2008
but also in subsequent years. Accordingly, the Company will be able to deduct its remaining investment
incentives from taxable profit in the future without any time limitation.

Pursuant to the 6009 numbered Law published on 1 August 2010 dated and 27659 numbered Official
Gazette and became effective accordingly, the amount of investment incentive exemption which is
deducted from income to estimate the tax base cannot be more than 253% of the income, and the
remaining income will be subject to income tax at the prevailing tax rate. In accordance with this law
and Constitutional Court decision there is no time limitation in using investment incentive amount
carried forward from year 2005 but the amount could not be more than 25% of income.

The clause “The amount which to be deducted as investment incentive to estimate tax base cannot
exceed 25% of related income™ which has been added to first clause of the temporary 69th article of
Law No: 193 with the 5th article of Law No: 6009 on Amendments to Income Tax Law and Some Other
Laws and Decree Laws has been abrogated with the decisions no: E20100/93 and K.2012/20 on
9 February 2012,
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Related party

In accordance with TAS 24 - Related Party Disclosures shareholders, key management and board
members, in cach case together with companies controlled by or affiliated with them, and associated
companies are considered and referred to as related parties. Related party transactions consist of the
transfer of the assets and liabilities between related parties by a price or free of charge.

For the purpose of the accompanying financial statements, sharcholders of the Company the companics
controlled by/associated with them, key management and the Board members of the Company are
referred to as related partics.

Earnings per share

Eamings per share disclosed in the statements of income is determined by dividing the profit attributable
to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the period concerned. In Turkey, companies can increase their share capital by making a pro-rata
distribution of shares (“bonus shares™) to existing sharcholders from retained earnings to sharcholders’
equity. For the purpose of earnings per share computations, the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period has been adjusted in respect of bonus shares issued without a
corresponding change in resources by giving them retroactive effect for the period in which they were
issued and for each earlier period.

Subsequent events

Subsequent events mean the events occurred between the reporting date and the authorization date for
the announcement of the financial statements. In accordance with TAS 10 - Events After the Balance
Sheet Date; posi-balance sheet events that provide additional information about the Company’s position
at the balance sheet dates (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post- balance sheet
events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material,

Statement of cash flows

The Company prepares statement of cash flows to inform the users of the financial statements about the
changes in its net assets, its financial structure and its ability to affect the amount and timing of its cash
flows with respect to changing external conditions.

In the statement of cash flows, cash flows of the period are reported with a classification based on
operating, investing and financing activities. cash flows from operating activitics represent cash flows
from activitics within the scope of business. cash flows relating to investment activitics represent cash
flows used and generated from investment activities (fixed investmenis and financial investments). cash
flows relating to financing activities represent the sources of financing the Company used and the
repayvments of these sources.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Statement of cash flows (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, for the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents are presented below:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Cash and cash equivalents in the

statement of cash Mows 2,742,139 779,199
Interest income aceruals on cash and cash equivalents (1.893) (117
Total in the cash flow statement

cash and cash equivalents 2.740.246 779,082

3 -SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment reporting of financial information

A business scgment is a part of an area where the Company operates and for which outcomes are
regularly reviewed, performance is measured and financial information can be distinguished by the
Board of Dircctors (as the decision-making authority), and a business segment carns revenucs and has
expenses, including revenues and expenses arising from transactions with other business segmenis.
Since all activities of the Company consist of financial leasing and are performed in a single region,
Turkey, there is no segment reporting.

4 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND THE CENTRAL BANK

Cash and cash equivalents and the Central Bank

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, details of bank balances are as follow

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Banks 2,742.139 779,199
Demand deposit 2,727 690 761,506
Time deposit 14,449 17,693

Total 2,742,139 779,199

As at 31 December 2022, time deposits consist of bank placements with marturity less than three months
and with interest rates average 1.35% for foreign currency and 15.69% for TL time deposits.
{31 December 2021: 17.06% for TL and 0.70% for foreign).
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5 - FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Details of financial assets for which the fair value difference is recognised through other comprehensive
income arc as follows:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Carrying Carrying
value ™ Share (%) value Share (%)
Not Traded at Stock Market:
Vakif Fakloring A.S. 38,781 379 22,288 3.79
Vakif Pazarlama Sanayi ve Ticaret AS. 5.902 327 2,646 327
Vakaf Yaturnm Menkul Degerler AS. 2,008 0.25 1,500 0.25
Financial assets for which fair value
difference is recognised
through other comprehensive income 46,781 26,434

) Financial assets at fuir value through other comprehensive income that are menitored at Level 3 melude fwr values of
marketable sceuritics representing fair market value held by independent appraisers,

6 - LEASING TRANSACTIONS AND IMPAIRED RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income are as follow:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

TL FC TL FC
Lease receivables 6,077 456 4,576,591 1,458 309 3,967 664
Invoiced lease receivables 20026 118,385 50,249 235,085
Subtotal 6,106,482 4,694,976 1,508,558 4,202,749
Unearned interest income (2,009 687) (588, 488) (379 846) (561,910
Finance lease receivables,
net of unearned income 4,096,795 4,106,488 1,128,712 3,640,839
Impaired lease reccivables 46,157 174,537 49 697 162 083
Specific provision (29.719) (98 415) (39.410) (128,963)
Impaired lease receivables, net 16,438 T6,122 10,287 33120

Finance lease receivables, net 4,113,233 4,182,610 1,138,999 3,673,959
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6 — LEASING TRANSACTIONS AND IMPAIRED RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Prospective aging analysis of the neither past due nor impaired and past due but not impaired lease

receivables is as follows:
4 vear and
31 December 2022 Up to 1 vear 1-2 year 2-3 year 3-4 year aver Total
Lease receivables 4920932 2704291 1858707 B51 832 465656 10,801 458
Uneamned inerest income (1,296,832} (T42.536)  (368.073)  (137.149) (53583)  (2.598,175)
Met finansal kiralama alacaklar 3624100 1,961,755 1,490,632 714,683 412,113 #,203,283
4 vear and
31 December 2021 Uptol year  1-2year  2-3vear 34 year over Total
Lease receivables 1323286 1ABT 039 £33, 106 556,500 481376 5,711,307
Uneaned interest income (383,738) (238,236) {148,269 (92,204 (78979 (941,756)
Finance lease receivables, Net 1,939,548 1,248 803 634,807 493,996 402,397 4,769,551

As of 31 December 2022, the average compounded interest rates for finance lease receivables are
27.09% for TL, 8.45% for USD and 7.00% for EUR (31 December 2021: 18.04% for TL, 8.80% for

USD and 6.61% for EUR).
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the aging of the lease receivables and related specific provisions are
as follows:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Meither past due nor impaired 8,055,872 4484217
Past due but not impaired 147 411 285334
Impaired 220,694 211,780
Allowances for impairment (128,134) (168,373)
Finance lease receivables, net 8,295,843 4,812,958

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
151-240 days 33,793 9,940
241-1 year 40,430 3,632
| year and over 146,471 198,208
Impaired lease receivables, net 220,694 211,780
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6 = LEASING TRANSACTIONS AND IMPAIRED RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As of 3] December 2022, and 2021, details of the impaired lease receivables and related specific
provisions are as follows:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
TL FC TL FC
Impaired lease receivables 46,157 174,537 49 697 162,083
Specific provisions (29,719) (98.415) (39.410) (128,963)
Impaired lease receivables, net 16,438 76.122 10,287 33,120

The movement of the specific provision during the year is as follows:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Specific provisions at the beginning of the year 208,655 172,719
Provision for the year 26,197 26,462
General loan loss provisions for the yvear (Note 16) 4,253 16,804
Amount deleted from the asset during the period (92,0813 -
Collections during the vear (9,575) (7419
Specific provisions at the end of the vear 137,449 208,655

The details of collaterals taken for finance lease receivables that have specific provisions are as follows:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Mortgage 36,359 31,570
Other 561 5,865
Total collateral 36,920 37,435

The company reviews any change in credit quality related to receivables from the date it is created to
the balance sheet date in order to decide whether the receivable can be collected or not. Sectoral
distribution of the finance lease receivables is presented in Note 24,
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7 - TANGIBLE ASSETS

Movement in tangible assets in the period from 1 January to 31 December 2022;

1 January  Additions Disposals 31 December
Cosi:
Buildings 24,940 66,003 - 940,943
Motor vehicles 8,523 - (1,292) 7,231
“Furniture and fixture 2,089 265 i(13) 2,341
Other tangible assets 66 59 - 755
Right of use tangible assets (*) 199 74 (53) 220
36,447 66,401 (1,358) 101,490
Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings 4,617) (632} . (5,249)
Muotor vehicles [ARELY (1,446) 258 (2,329)
Furniture and [xture (1,003) (325) 6 (1,322)
Other tangible assets (659 (123) - (782)
Right of use tangible assets (*) 37 (75) 53 (K]
({7.45T) (2,601} 317 19,741)
Net defter degeri 28,990 63,8300 (1,041) 01,749
" The balance consists of meludes the lease contracts made within the scope of TFRS16.
Movement in tangible assets in the period from | January to 31 December 2021:
1 January 31 December
2021 Additions Disposals 2021
Cosi:
Buildings 24,940 - - 24,940
Motor vehicles 3,188 7.361 (2,026) 8,523
“Furniture and fixture 1,773 438 (122 2,089
Other tangible assets 692 4 - 696
Right of use tangible assets (*) B3 245 (131) 199
30,678 B.048 (2,279) 36,447
Aceumulated depreciation:
Buildings (3,985) (632) - (4.617)
Motor vehieles (723 (1,121) T03 (1.141)
Furniture and fixture (773 (3300 100 (1,003)
Other tangible assets (546) (113) - (659}
Right of use tangible assets (*) (48) (56) 67 37
(6,075) (2.252) 870 (7.457)
Net book value 24,603 5,79% (1,409) 28,990

) The balance consists of includes the lease contracts made within the seope of TFRS16.

As 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, there is no mortgage on the tangible assets of the

Company.

As of 31 December 2022, total insurance coverage for tangible asscts of the Company is TL 68,851

(31 December 2021: TL 34,301).
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8- INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Movement in intangible assets in the period from 1 January to 31 December 2022 is as follows:

1 January 31 December
2022 Additions Disposals 2022
Cosit:

Soltware 4,210 325 - 5,035
4,210 K25 - 5,035

Accumulated amortization:
Software (3,520) (446) - (3,971
(3,526) (446) - (3,972)
MNet book value [iEE] 1,063

Movement in intangible assets in the period from | January to 31 December 2021 is as follows:

1 January 31 December
2021 Additions Disposals 2021
Cosi:

Sollware 3,944 266 - 4,210
3,944 266 - 4,210

Accenmulated amortization:
Software (2,977 (54%9) - (3,526)
(2,977) (549) - (3,526)
Net hook value 967 (=]

9 - ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

As of December 31, 2022, the Company's fixed assets held for sale consist of real estate that the
Company has included in its assets as a result of legal proceedings related to non-performing receivables,
the details of which are as follows:

31 Arahk 2022 31 Arahk 2021
Eal estate held for sale 128,480 -

Total 128,480 -
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10 - TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Social Security Premiums 1,622 403
Income tax 564 289
VAT payable 295 129
Stamp tax 15 10
2,496 83

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Tax provision 97,436 33,433
Less: Prepaid taxes (69,601) (897)
Current income tax liabilities, net 27,835 32,536

10 - TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Tax expense
Corporate tax expense for the period (97.436) (33,433)
Deferred tax income/(expense) effect (75,808) (3.585)
(173,244) (37,018)
Reconciliation of current period tax expense to theoretical tax expense of the Company calculated by
using the statutory tax rate:
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Profit before taxes 691,810 165,089
Theoretical tax expense with 25% tax rate (172,953) (41,272)
General loan loss provision not subjected to deferred tax (1,063) (4,224)
Other ™ 772 8,478
Current year tax expense {173,244) {37.018)

(*)  Investment tax credits used by the Company consist of non-deductible expenses and other expenses,
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10 - TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)
Deferred taxes

The Company calculates and accounts for deferred income taxes for all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in these financial statements
in accordance with “Turkish Accounting Standard for Income Taxes” ("TAS 127). In the deferred tax
caleulation, the enacted tax rate, in accordance with the tax legislation, is used as of the balance sheet
date.

The company takes into account the periods when deferred tax assets are realized or deferred tax
liabilitics are fulfilled in the calculation of deferred tax (31 December 2021: 23% for transactions with
a maturity of 2022, 20% for transactions after 2022),

December 31, 2022, based on the above-mentioned Constitutional Court Decision, there is no deferred
tax asset on the unused investment allowance calculated based on the best estimates (December 31,
2021 TL 36,609),

Details of cumulative temporary differences and the deferred income tax assets and liabilities caleulated
by using the effective tax rates are summarised below:

Total Deferred tax assets/
Temporary differences (liabilities)

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2022 2021 2022 2021

Lease Asset Receivable Impairment 43,784 67,617 10,946 15,552

Unused investment incentives- with stoppage - 36,609 - 1,171

Derivative financial assets - 21.516 - 4,949

Provision for employee termination benefit 9,834 4,792 2458 958

Other short term employee benefits 5,391 2,371 1,348 545

Provision for unused vacations 02 557 176 128

Total | liabilities 180 171 45 39

Deferred tax assets 59,891 133,633 14,973 23,342

Finance lease income accruals {381,343) (134,436) {95,336) (30,920)
Tangible and intangible assets

revaluation difference (86,868) (20 865) {10,859} (2,086)

Subsidiary revaluation fund (42,362) (24,294) (2,648 (1,214)

Others (3,253) (3,758) (2061 (L))

Deferred tax Liabilities (518,826) (183,353) {110,904) {35,084)

Deferred tax assets, (net) (458,935) (49,720) (95,931) {11,742)
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10 - TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

The movement for deferred tax assets is as follows:
31 December 2022 31 December 2021

1 January (11,742) (8,299)
Current year deferred tax income/(expense) (75,808) (3,585)
Deferred tax in Equity income/{expense) (8,381) 142
31 December (95,931) (11,742)

11 - OTHER ASSETS
As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, details of other assets are as follows:
31 December 2022 31 December 2021

TL FC TL FC
Advances given for leasing transactions 537,370 Q18,004 12,925 359 852
lnvestments under lease 736,201 113,949 112,884 118,759
Prepaid expenses 2,795 9,756 20921 13,259
Other receivables regarding leasing transactions 4,899 12210 4 544 3,680
Checks received - - - 7601
Other 1,487 297 1,127 2,245
Total other assets 802,752 1,054,816 134,401 505,396

12 - BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2022, details of the borrowings are as follows:

—31 December 2022 —31 December 2021

TL FC TL FC

Domestic banks 6,612,885 2,763,261 957,605 3,196,911
Foreign banks - 1,474,457 - Q78,938
Total Borrowings 6,612,885 4,237,718 957,605 4,175,849
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12 - BORROWINGS(Continued)

Carrving value

Amount in Average
original interest Upted 3 monthsto Over
31 December 2022 currencies rates (%a) months 1 vear 1 year Total
Borrowings from domestic banks:
Fixed rate borrowings
TL 9725 12,30 754,329 215,145 3441 972915
EUR (thousand) 47 941 353 626,767 29,902 299,024 955,693
USD {thousand) BT 3.52 6,663 6,529 3,386 16,578
Floating rate borrowings:
TL 5,639,970 1669 1,175,139 182,125 4282706 5639970
EUR (thousand) 59,842 3.24 81,083 548,825 1,161,082 1,790,990
Taotal borrowing from domestic banks 2,643,981 981526 5749639 9376146
Borrowings from foreign banks:
Fixed rate borrowings:
EUR (thousamd) 25,982 377 - - 517,958 517,958
Floating rate borrowings:
EUR (thousand) 33363 1.91 44,041 156,644 474,379 675,064
USI (thousand) 15,051 0 - B 281,435 281,435
Total borrowings from loreign banks 44,041 156,644 1,273,772 1,474,457
Total barrowings 1688,022 1,139,070 7023411 10850603
Carrving value
Amount in Average
original interest Upted 3 months to Over
31 December 2021 currencies rafes (%) months 1 vear 1 year Total
Borrowings from domestic banks:
Fixved rate borrowings
TL 957,605 13.06 474,671 258,601 224,333 957,605
EUR {thousand) 115,217 242 873,391 204,049 614,213 1,691,653
USD {thousand) A0 818 il3 379,361 139,033 11,328 329,722
Floating rate barrowings:
EUR {thousand) 6,443 2.92 95,300 297,560 582,586 975,536
Tatal borrowing from domestic hanks 1,522,813 BO9.243 1432460 4,154,516
Borrowings from foreign banks:
Fixed rate borrowings:
EUR {thousand) 18,564 1.76 36,8949 35,69 205,916 278,509
LSI {thousand) 15,020 308 - - 194,918 194,918
Floating rate borrewings
EUR (thousand) 34,430 3.69 74,154 79,731 351,626 505,511
Total barvowings from foreign banks 111,053 115425 THL 460 D78, 938
Taotal borrowings 1,933,866 1,014,668 2184920 5133454
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13 - LEASE LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022 details of lease liabilities are as follows:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
TL FC TL FC
Right of use tangibles 180 - 171 -
Total lease liabilities 180 - 171 -

14 - SECURITIES ISSUED

Mone ., (31 December 2021:None)
15 - DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS
Mone, (31 December 2021: 21,516).

16 - PROVISIONS
As at 31 December 2022 details of provisions for liabilities and charges are as follows:

31 December 2021 __
TL FC TL FC

General loan loss provisions for financial
lease receivables " (Note 6) 9,258 107 5,112 35,170
Reserve for emplovee benefits 15,927 - 7,720 -
Reserve for employee termination benefit 9,833 . 4,792 -
Provision for unused vacations 702 - 557 -
Reserve for bonuses 1,759 - 851 -
Provisions for other employee rights 3633 - 1320 -
Total provisions 25,185 107 12,832 35170

"1 The Company reserves general provisions within the scope of the fifth paragraph of Article 6 of the Regulation on
Accounting Practices and Financial Statements of Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies.
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16 = PROVISIONS (Continued)

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

At the beginning of the year 4,792 3405
Interest rate cost 905 436
Service cost 501 345
Payments during the year (379) (304)
Actuarial difference ™ 4014 910
At the end of the vear 9,833 4,792
© Actuarial (loss)profit is accounted under other comprehensive income since | January 2003,

17 - OTHER LIABLITIES

As of 31 December 2022, details of miscellaneous payables are as follows:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
TL FC TL FC
Advances received (%) 305,740 232 649] 65,843 176,062
Other trade payables 11,175 320,194 7613 90641
Deferred income 11,500 11,275 1,718 4351
Tatal Other Liabilities 328,415 564,160 75,174 271,054

(*) Advances received consist of the lease advances received from the lessees for the pants of the fnancial leasing agreements
regarding the machinery and equipment not yet available to the customers.

18 - EQUITY
Share capital

As at 31 December 2022, the share in capital of the Company amounts to TL 2,000,000 and composed
of 60,000,000,000 shares with a face value of TL 0,01 each (31 December 2021: capital shares TL
1,000,000, nominal value: SO.000.000,000 shares).

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the share capital and ownership structure of the
Company is as follows:

— 31 December 2022 = ___31 December 2021

Amount of Share Amount of Share
Share (TL) Percentage (%) Share (TL) Percentage (%)
Wakifbank 172,274 62.05 293562 62.61
Tirkiye Sigorta A5 - - 78,244 16.69
Publicly traded 227726 37.95 97.089 20.70
Pain-in capital (**) G0, 00 Fal00 468,895 100%a

3 The ratio is caleulated from the shares of the Company registered at Takashank.

(**)y  The Board of Directors of the Company decided to increase its paid-in capital by 100% on 7 October 2021, As of 31
December 2021, 218,895 TL of the nercased amount was collected, the remaining part was collected in 2022 and the
registration process for the capital increase was completed as of 31 January 2022,
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18 - EQUITY (Continued)

Capital reserves

As of 31 December 2022, capital reserves amounted to TL 1,662 consists of inflation adjustment
differences of paid-in capital of the Company (31 December 2021: TL 513).

As of 31 December 2022, revaluation difference on tangible assets amounting to TL 76,531
(31 December 2021: TL 18,779} is accounted directly in equity. As at 31 December 2022 the marketable
securities valuation differences amounts to TL 40,018 (31 December 2021 TL 23,080),

Profit reserves

As of 31 December 2022, profit reserves of the Company consist of first legal reserves amounting to
TL 20,737 (31 December 2021: TL 14,333) and extraordinary reserves amounting to TL 71,945
{31 December 2021: TL 50,278).

Profit distribution

Retained carnings as per the statutory financial statements other than legal reserves are available for
distribution, subject to the legal reserve requirement referred to below:

According to the Turkish Commercial Code, legal reserves consist of first and sccond legal reserves.
Primary reserves are 5% of stamtory net profit until it reaches 20% of the Company's share capital.
Secondary reserves are 10% of profit distributed in excess of 5% of share capital. According to the
Turkish Commercial Code, as long as legal reserves do not exeeed 50% of share capital, they can be
used to offset losses but cannot be used in any other way.

According to the Ordinary General Assembly decision of 2021 dated March 31, 2022; Vakif Finansal
Kiralama A.S. TL 6,404 corresponding to 5% of the net profit for the period, TL 128,071, will be set
aside as the first legal reserve, TL 100,000 will be added to the capital by issuing bonus shares over the
remaining net distributable profit for the period, and TL 21,667 will be added to the extraordinary
reserve. decided to separate.
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19 - OPERATING EXPENSES

For the years ended 31 December 2022, general administrative expenses included in the operating
expenses are as follow:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Advertising expenses 13,899 3,551
General administration expenses 5.545 3176
Depreciation and amortization expenscs 2,749 2,801
Consultancy expenses 2,021 1,116
Transportation expenscs 1,418 542
Motary expenscs 1,415 6E3
Add-back 750 524
Court expenscs 414 1,022
Taxes, dutics and charges cxpenscs 323 223
Printing, stationery and office expenses 278 143
Marketing cxpenscs 242 154
Registration expenses 157 42
Other operating expenses 1,760 1,120
Total general administrative expenses 30,971 15,007

For the years ended 31 December 2022, personnel expenses included in the operating expenses are as

follows:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Salaries 38.361 17,214
Social sccurity premiums and other contributions 5,000 2463
Personnel insurance expenses 1.457 1,206
Other personnel expenses 2974 1,100
Total personnel expenses 47,79 21.983
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20 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME/EXPENSE

For the years ended 31 December 2022, personnel expenses included in the operating expenses are as

follows:
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Foreign exchange gains 347 466 56,503
Default interest income 18,109 10,802
Interest income from bank deposits 130416 10,428
Provisions reversed during the year 45,124 7,723
Interest income from non-performing loans 13,190 6,031
Income from sales of fixed assets and assets held for sale 2,344 3,423
Gains on derivative flinancial ransactions 1,360 1,437
Dividend income 250 250
Rent income T00 21
Other income 19,628 4997
Total other operating income 578,587 101,615
Other operating expenses:
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Loss on derivative financial transactions 70,973 21,772
Securitics depreciation expense 12,497 -
Other expense 150 498
Total other operating expenses 83,620 22,270
21 - EARNINGS PER SHARE
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
At the beginning of the vear
Total number of outstanding shares 56,894,556,000 35,000,000,000
At the beginning of the yvear
Total number of oulstnnding shares 60,000,000,000  56,894,556,000(*)
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Net income for the period 518,566 128,071
MNumber of outstanding shares
with a nominal value of TL 0,01 60,000,000,000 35,184,102,600
Earnings per share (TL) 0.864 0.364

(*) The company has increased its capital amounting to TL 100,000 from intemal resources, and the number of shares in previous

vears has been adjusted in line with the current period.



mnon w222+ 100

ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2022

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD
AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

20272

VAKIF FINANSAL KiRALAMA AS.

DECEMBER 31, 2022 FOR THE YEAR OF
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts expressed i thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwase indicated)

22- TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

As of 31 December 2022, details of related party balances are as follows:

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

TL FC TL FC
Tiirkiye Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.O. 1,585 535 1,153 566 207431 338950
Bank Deposits 1,585,535 1,153,566 207431 538,950
Vakil Faktoring A5, 38,781 - 22,288 -
Vakil Pararlama Sanayi ve Ticarel A%, 5,902 - 2,646 -
Valkaf Yatnnm Menkul Deferler AS. 2,098 - 1,500 -
Financial assets for which fair value
difference is recogniscd
through other comprehensive income 46,781 - 26,434 -
Tilrkiye Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.0. 5,855,935 1,476 476 720,048 481,386
Vakifbank Intemational AG - - - 4953
Borrowings 5,855,935 1,476,476 720,048 486,339
Tiirkiye Sigorta A_S. - . 10,181 -
Valaf Pazarlama Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. o4 - 32 -
Payables to related parties 64 - 10,213 -

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Tiirkiye Vakiflar Bankas: T.A.O. 123 855 &£,710
Interest income from related parties 123,855 8,710
Tiirkiyve Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.O. - interest expense 562,143 66,620
Vakifbank International AG- interest expense 87 514
Finance expenses of related parties 562,230 67,134
Valkaf Yanrim Menkul Degerler ALS. 250 2350
Tiirkiye Sigorta AS. - 3,783
Vakaf Faktoring A.S. 41 30
Other incomes of related parties 291 4,063
Tiirkiye Vakiflar Bankas: T.A.O. 32434 TA4l15
Vakif Pazarlama Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. 652 385
Vakif Yatrim Menkul Degerler A5, 306 &0
Vakif Faktoring A.S. 44 10
Tiirkiye Sigorta AS. - BE6
Tiirkiyve Hayat ve Emeklilik AS. - 16
Other expenses of related parties 33436 8,792
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22- TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
Executive management compensations
As at 31 December 2022, Company’s executive management compensations are as follows:
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Compensation to the executive management 6,685 2672

Total 6,685 2,672

The executive management of the Company consists of general manager, assistant general managers,
members of the board of directors and the members of the audit committee,

23 - CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Collaterals received
As of 31 December 2022, the collaterals obtained by the Company against finance lease receivables are
as follows:
31 December 2022 31 December 2021

TL FC TL FC
Received guarantees 37043320 80,046,755 719610 60,928,050
Mortgages 2,345,391 4,749 676 976,212 3,799,781
Assignment of claims 1,472 826 2,112,698 837,778 1,829.615
Company share pledge 1,089 488 79,468 1,074,588 55,154
Cash blockage 4,390 9,429 860 5915
Letters of guarantee - - 4,001 10
Others 516,679 1,965,863 143,982 589416
Total 42,472,094 88,963,889 11,757,031 67,207,941
Commitments

As of 31 December 2022, the Company has irrevocable commitments amounted to TL 1,326,572
(31 December 2021 TL 663 983) arising from letter of credits used for the tangible asset purchases
subject 1o finance leases. The distribution of the commitments according to currency types is as follows:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

EUR 431,500 400,899
TL 731,183 211,496
UsD 163,889 51,588
GBP - -
Total 1,326,572 663,983
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23 - CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Collaterals received (Continued)
Revecable Commitmenis

As of 31 December 2022, Company’s financial lease commitments amounts to TL 2,499 494
(3] December 2021; TL 1,423 044),

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
TL FC TL FC
Financial lease commitment 1,238,773 1,260,721 334,603 1,088 381
Total 1,238,773 1,260,721 334,003 1,088,381
Derivative financial instruments
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
TL FC TL FC
Swap purchases - - 55,195 -
Swap sales - - - 73412
Total - - 55,195 73412

24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Overview

This note presents information about the Company 's exposure to each of the below risks, the Company’'s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management
of capital. The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

. Credit nisk
. Liquidity risk
. Market risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s
risk management framework. The Board of Directors monitors the effectiveness of the risk management
system through various mechanism cstablished within the Company.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions,
products and services offered. The Company, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations,
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24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit Risk

Credit risk is basically defined as the possibility that counterparty will fail to meet its obligations in
accordance under agreed terms of a contract. The Company aims to reduce exposed credit risks by
entering into contracts with the counterparties having high credibility and by obtaining sufficient
collateral against the loans provided. Besides, the Company analyse the financial position and the
credibility of the customers and aims to support this analysis with intelligence reports obtained from the
third parties. In addition, the sector and the geographical position of customers, where they operate and
other factors that may affect their operations are considered in the evaluation process of loans.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis
to minimize the credit risk. Credit risk is aimed to be controlled by the limits set by the Board of
Directors,

Finance lease receivables cover many kinds of customers in different sectors. For the current balances
of the customers, credit evaluations are done periodically.
Balance sheet items of the Company, which are subject to eredit risk, are as follows:

Finance lease reccivables

Financial asscts at fair value through profit or loss
Banks

Other receivables

- 8 8 ®
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24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

As of 31 December 2022, sectoral distribution of finance lease receivables which are not under impaired

15 as follows:
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Amount (%a) Amount (%a)
Manufacturing 3,825,500 46.63 2,357,136 4942
Construction 1,630,757 149 88 1,038,426 21,77
Wholesale, retail and trading ROR 606 10,95 HR5. 307 14,37
Real estate 482 208 5 88 | 88,787 396
Education 119, 782 1.46 101,327 212
Mining 329470 4,02 97 238 204
Health and social services 624,545 7.61 93 709 1 .96
Transportation, warehousing
and communication (7,333 082 69 288 | .45
Hotels and restaurants 87.250 1.06 63,598 1.33
Agriculture A 1.0 54,980 1,15
Other social and individual services 40,271 .49 9,780 021
Financial intermediary services 12,557 015 6,297 013
Others 3,037 (.05 3678 0%
Total 8,203,283 100 4,769,551 100

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations from its
financial liabilities,

Management of liguidity risk

Main responsibility for the liquidity risk management belongs to Board of Directors, Board of Directors
has created a suitable liquidity risk management for the short-, medium- and long-term funding and
liquidity needs. The Company manages the liquidity risk by following forecasted and actual cash flows,
matching the terms of financial assets and liabilitics and securing necessary funds,

The following table provides undiscounted cash flows with respect to the contractual (or expected)
maturities of the Company’s financial liabilities

Total Contractualf Maore

Carrying expected maturity 6 months 6-12 1-2 2-5 than 5

3 December 2022 Amount  cash infout Mows or less  months VEArs YEArs YEArs
Borrowings 10,850,603 12,821,004 3405484 L I0G0IE 4534774 3STHEIR -
Oiher liabilities 892,575 202,575 892,573 . . . .
Total 11,743,178 13714479 4295080 1303018 4534774 35TH628 -
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24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Total Contractual/ More

Carrying expected maturity 6 months 6-12 1-2 2-5  than$5

31 December 2021 Amount  cash infout Mows or less  months  years  years  vears
Borrowings 5,133,454 5375976 2376110 TIR931 1,289,521 991414 -
Other liabilities 346,228 346,228 346,228 - - - -
Total 5,479,082 5722204 21,712338 TI8931 1,289,521 991414 -

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the Company’s income or the value of its financial instruments will be
affeeted through the changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices, foreign exchange rates
and credit spreads. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
cxposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return on risk.

Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk through transactions in forcign currencics, such as lease
operations and borrowings. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from foreign currency
transactions were recorded in the period transactions occurred. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are converted into TL at the exchange rates prevailing at balance
sheet date with the resulting exchange differences recognized in the statement of income as foreign

exchange gain or loss.

As of 31 December 2022, the Company’s foreign currency assets and liabilities with their TL equivalents
are as follows:

31 December 2022 LS Dallar Euro GBP CHF Total
Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,670 1.149.912 22 . 1,156,604
Financial Assets at Fair Value

threugh Profit or Lass (1) 694,023 3,412,465 . , 4,106,488
Other Assets 300,976 751,787 42 2011 1,054816
Total assets 1,001,669 5.314,164 6 2m1 6,317,908
Borrowing 298,014 3,039,704 . - 4237718
Prowvisions 7 100 - - 107
Other liabilitics 157,211 A0 0 - a0 36, 160
Total liabilities 455,232 4,346,713 - 40 4,801,985
Net financial statement position 546,437 967,451 o4 1971 1,515,923
Net off-balance sheet items pasition - - - = -
Net foreign currency position 546,437 967,451 [X] 1.971 1,515,923

a Foreign currency non-performing receivables in Anancial statements are nod included.
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24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

31 December 2021 US Dollar Euro GBP CHF Total
Banks N.472 449,279 1 - 540,752
Finance lease reccivables, net 1% 693 390 2,047 449 = = 3,640,830
Oiher Assets 83,5941 421,320 122 13 505,396
Total asscis 68,503 3818048 123 13 4,686,987
Rorrowing 724,641 3451208 - - 4,175 849
Provisions - 35070 - - 35,170
Other habilities 33,392 237,604 53 5 271,054
Tatal liabilities 758,033 3723982 3 5 4452073
MNet financial statement position 110,770 94,066 70 ] 204,914
Net off-balance sheet items position - (73.412) - - (T3412)
Net foreign currency position 110,770 20,654 70 8 131,502
A Foreign currency non-performing receivables in finaneial stitemets are nol inclwded.

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The effects of 10 percent change of the TL against the following currencies on the statement of income
and equity for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 are shown below.

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

] 1 Equity ]
Appreciation  Depreciation  Appreciation  Depreciation
of foreign of foreign of foreign of foreign
31 December 2022 CUrrency CUFTency currency CUrrency
10% change of the US Dollar against TL
1-Net USIY assetliability 54,644 (54,644) 54,644 (54,644)
2-Hedged portion of TL against USD {-) - - - -
J-Net effect of US Dollar (1+2) 54,644 (54,644) 54,644 (54,644)
10% change of the Euro against TL
4-Net Furo assethabihity 96,745 (96,745) 96,745 (96,745)
S-Hedged portion of T1. against Furo (<) - - - -
G-Net effect of Euro (4+5) 96,745 (96,745) 96,745 (96,745)
10% change of the CHF against TL
T-Met CHF asseuTiability 197 (197) 197 (197}
8-Hedged portion of TL against CHF (-} - - - -
9-Net effect of CHF (7+8) 197 (197) 197 (197}
10% change of the GBP against TL
10-Net GBP asset/liability 6 () G (6}
1 1-Hedged portion of TL aganst GBP (-) - . - .
Net effect of GBP (10+11) [ (6} [ (6}
TOTAL (3+6+9+12) 151,592 {151,592} 151,592 {151,592}
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24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis (Continued)

[y}

— Profit / (Loss)
Appreciation  Depreciation  Appreciation  Depreciation
of foreign of Toreign of foreign of foreign

31 December 2021 currency currency currency CUrTency
10% change of the US Dollar against TL

1-Net USD assct/liability 11,077 (11,077 11,077 (11,077
2-Hedged portion of TL against USD (-) - - - -
3-Net effect of US Dollar (1+2) 11077 (1.077) 1,077 (1.,077)
10% change of the Euro against TL

4-Met Euro asset/liability 2,065 (2,065) 2,065 (2,065)
5-Hedged portion of TL against Euro (-) - - - -
6-Net effect of Euro (4+5) 2,065 (2,065) 2,065 (2065)
10% change of the CHF against TL

7-Mel CHF assetliability 1 (1 1 i
8-Hedged portion of TL against CHF (=) - - - -
9-Net effect of CHF (7+8) 1 (1) 1 (1)
10% change of the GBP against TL

10-Met GBP asset/liability 7 n 7 M
11-Hedged portion of TL against GBP (-) - - - -
12-Net effect of GBP (10+11) 7 (] 7 (]
TOTAL (3+6+9+12) 13,150 (13.150) 13,150 (13,150)

"1 Equity effect includes profivi(loss) effect.
Exposure to interest rate risk

The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios are exposed to the risk of loss from fluctuations in the
future cash flows because of a change in market interest rates. Interest rate risk is managed principally
through monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-approved limits for repricing bands.

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk through its fixed and variable rate borrowings. The risk is
managed by appropriate distribution between fixed and variable rate borrowings.

As of 31 December 2022, and 2021, the interest sensitive financial instruments of the Company are as
follows:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Financial assets and liabilities with fived interest rate

Time deposits 2,742,139 761,506
Finance lease receivables, net 8,203,283 4,769,551

Borrowing 2,463,146 3,178,980
Securities issued - -
Financial assets and fiabilities with floating rate

Borrowing 8387457 1,954,474
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24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity
Interest rate sensitivity of profit or loss is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the fair

values of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss held as at 31 December 2022 and effect on
net interest income of floating rate non-trading financial assets and financial liabilities held.

Profit or Loss Equity
100 bp 100 bp 100 bp 100 bp
31 December 2022 increase decrease increase decrease
Floating rate financial liabilitics (B39 ®39 (839) B30
Total, net (839} 839 (839) 830
Profit or Loss Equity
100 bp 100 bp 100 bp 100 bp
31 December 2021 increase decrease increase decrease
Floating rate financial liabilities (195} 195 (195} 195
Total, net (195) 195 (195) 195

(*y  Equity effect includes profitviloss) effect.
Capital management

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base and to maintain a balance between the debe
and equity in an effective way so as to increase its profit.

Along with no change in the strategy of the Company in 2022, the ratio of the equities to the debis is
11% (31 December 2021: 13%). As of 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the debt to equity
ratio is as follows:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Borrowing 10,850,603 5,133,454
Securities issued - -
Other liabilitics BO2 575 346,228
Total Liabilities 11,743,178 5,479,682
Total Equity 1,324,939 702,444
Equity/Debt ratio %11 13%
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25 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair values of financial instruments

The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by the Company using available
market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, certain judgments made to
estimate the fair value can cause an adjustment to the fair value at current market conditions,

Fair values of the financial lease receivables and funds borrowed have been determined by discounting
the relevant cash flows by market interest rates prevailing as at balance sheet date. The carrying amounts
of the bank balances and miscellaneous payables and other liabilities are assumed that they approximate
their fair value due to their short-term nature

31 December 2022 __31 December 2021

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value

Financial assets
Finance lease receivables, net 8,203,283 7.577.447 4,769,551 4,361,756
Banks 2,742,139 2,742,139 TT9 1949 779,199
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 10,850,603 9,549,186 5,133,454 5,169,549
Securities issued - - - -
Other liabilities 892573 BO2 575 346,228 346,228

Classification of Fair Value Measurement

TFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosure requires the disclosure of the classification of fair value
measurements according to a fair value hierarchy by reference to the observability and significance of
the inputs used in measuring fair value of financial instruments measured at fair value. This classification
basically relies on whether the relevant inputs are observable or not. Observable inputs refer to the use
of market data obtained from independent sources, whereas unobservable inputs refer to the use of
predictions and assumptions about the market made by the Company. This distinction brings about a
fair value measurement classification generally as follows:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities,

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from
prices).

Level 3: Fair value measurements using inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable
market data {unobservable inputs).

Classification requires using observable market data if possible.
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25 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Classification of Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

The classification of fair value measurements of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value is
as follows at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021:

31 December 2022 1. Level 2. Level 3. Level Total

Financial assets at fair value through
Other comprehensive income: - - - -
Invesimenis in equity participations (*) - - 46,781 46,751
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss: - - - -
Financial derivative liabilities - - - -

Total Financial Assets/Liabilities

) Financial assets al fair value through other comprehensive income presented at 3. level includes fair values
of equity shares whose fair value has been determined by independent valuation institutions.

31 December 2021 1. Level 2. Level 3, Level Total

Financial asscts at fair value through
Other comprehensive income: - - - -
Investments in equily participations (*) - - 26,434 26,434
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss: - - - -
Financial derivative liabilities - - - -

Total Financial Assets/Liabilities 26,434 26,434

' Financial assets al fair value through other comprehensive income presented at 3. level includes fair values
of equity shares whose fair value has been determined by independent valuation institutions,

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Balance at the beginning of the period 26,434 25618
Cash capital increase during the period 2,280 -
Total gains for the period recognized under equity 18,067 816
Balance at the end of the period 46,781 26,434

26 - OTHER EXPLANATIONS
Information about fees regarding the services received by the Company from the Independent Auditor:

31 Decembe 2022~ 31 December 2021

Independent audit fee for the reporting period 203 148
Total 203 148
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17 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

By 14 January 2023 32073 published in the Official Gazette date and the tax procedural Law general
communiqué No. 547 sequence (sequence No. 537), in depreciable assets and immovable with the
communigué on the amendment re-evaluation of the procedures and principles of Conduct which the
law allows to be revised. Accordingly, the Bank will be able to make a revaluation on the real estate and
depreciable economic assets on its balance sheet, provided that it meets the conditions set out in the
Provisional Article 32 of the Tax Procedure Law and the provisions of the Repeated article 298 / .
Thus, corporate income tax will be able to be paid by calculating it according to the values of immovable
and depreciable economic assets found after revaluation.

An carthquake has occurred in the south-castem part of Turkey, affecting many of our cities. Due to the
fact that the final severity of this earthquake, which caused the loss of thousands of lives and injuries, is
currently unelear, the impact study on the Company's operations and financial situation is continuing.






